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WELCOME TO THE
SIRIUS MINERALS
2012 ANNUAL REPORT

SIRIUS MINERALS PLC IS A GLOBALLY DIVERSIFIED
POTASH DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LISTED ON THE
LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE'S AIM MARKET.

SIRIUS MINERALS IS PRIMARILY FOCUSED ON

THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE WORLD’S LARGEST

AND HIGHEST-GRADE POLYHALITE DEPOSIT IN THE
UNITED KINGDOM, THE YORK POTASH PROJECT.

THE COMPANY IS ALSO COMMITTED TO DEVELOPING
A PORTFOLIO OF PROJECTS AND CONTINUES TO
REVIEW OPPORTUNITIES AROUND THE GLOBE THAT
FT THE COMPANY'S LONG TERM STRATEGY TO
BECOME A LEADING GLOBAL POTASH PRODUCER

This Annual Report contains forward looking statements These forward looking
staternents are not guarantees of future performance Rather they are based on
current views and assumptions and involve known and unknown nsks, uncertainties
and other factors that may cause actual results to differ from any future results

or developments expressed or implied from the forward looking statements

Each forward looking statement speaks only as of the date of the particular staternent
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OUR
VISION

TO BECOME
A LEADING GLOBAL
POTASH PRODUCER

LARGE SCALE:
TARGET OF BECOMING A TOP FIVE
POTASH PRODUCER

LOW COST:

OPERATIONS HAVE THE POTENTIAL TO
BE AT THE BOTTOM OF THE COST CURVE
FOR KEY MARKETS

LONG LIFE:
ASSETS WITH A RESOURCE LIFE OF
OVER 50 YEARS

HIGH GROWTH:
EXPANDABLE ASSETS AND PORTFOLIO
OF NEW PROJECTS

INDEPENDENT AND CUSTOMER ALIGNED:
ENGAGE DIRECTLY WITH CUSTOMERS AND
ALIGN THE COMPANY AND ASSETS WITH
MAJOR CUSTOMERS
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CHAIRMAN’S
STATEMENT

SIRIUS MINERALS IS ONE OF THE WORLD’S MOST
EXCITING RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT COMPANIES
AND WE HAVE NOW PUT IN PLACE MANY OF THE
KEY BUILDING BLOCKS THAT WILL UNDERPIN THE
SUCCESS OF SIRIUS FOR YEARS TO COME

't 18 with great pleasure that | submit to
you my first Chairman’s Statement for
Sirius Minerals Plc

This past year has been one of
tremendous advancement for the
Company Without doubt, we are
now considered one of the world’s
most exciting resource development
companies and are being closely
watched around the world by the

key parttcipants and observers in the
fertiiser industry, and more specifically,
the potash sector Major mining
companies, infrastructure players and
providers of capital in Europe, Asia,
the Middle East and the Amencas

are now very aware of Sirus and our
outstanding potential

The strategic importance of food
secunty 1s a challenge for many
countries that are under continued
pressure from population and economic
growth This is particularly relevant in
the major population growth areas of
China, India, Brazil, Indonesia, certain
parts of Africa and the Middle East
We are now even more convinced
that the fertiliser industry, especially
potassium ennched minerals, present
a major iong term investment and
expansion opportunity for Sinus

In the past year the Company has
focused on putting in place many of the
key ‘buiiding blocks’ that will underpin
the success of Sinus for years to come

Your Board has changed markedly

this past year | am very proud to

have been elected Chairman in late 2011
after Chnis Catlow opted to move to the
Deputy Charrman role | have worked
alongstde Chrs for many years and am
vary grateful that he 1s continuing to
contribute significantly to our Company
Both Richard Poulden and Derek
Stonley, long standing directors during
our formative period, retired from the
Board Our CFO and Finance Diractor
Andrew Lindsay also stepped down
from the Board We appreciate each

of therr contributions to our significant
progress this past year

We are very pleased to have added to
the Board, as non-executive directors,
former UK Cabinet Miruster, Lord Hutton
of Furness and the CEQ of Network Ratf,
Sir David Higgins Both of them have

no other non-executive director roles In
Isted companies and bring a breadth

of skills and experience to Sinus which
fit perfectly wath our challenges in

the years ahead (n May this year,

Jason Murray, after a long history

of large scale project and company
financings, became our new CFO and
Finance Director

We are now even
more convinced
that the fertiliser
industry, especially
potassium enriched
minerals, present
a major long

term investment
and expansion
opportunity

for Sirius.




The goals we have set for the Company
cannct be achieved without our very
able Managing Director and CEQ, Chns
Fraser His team of highly skilled experts
work hand-in-hand with world class
design and construction partners in the
critical areas of the York Potash Project
such as shafts, mining, pipelines,
minerals processmg and shipping

I am very pleased to tell you that many
of the key members of the operational
and financial management team who
will oversee the varnious elements of

our transition from development to
production are now also In place

The potential and scale of the York
Potash Project and quahty of the
management team have enabled the
Company to continue the evolution of
our shareholder register during the year,
Including the addition of several new
institutional investors Recent difficult
global economic times have added

a new level of volatiity to our market
value, so we thank our shareholders
who continue to show therr faith in
the Company’s direction, capability
and strategy

In January this year the Company raised
£55 miliion In an equity fundrarsing

This amount was raised o ensure the
Company had sufficient funding for
drilling and the feasibility studies for the
York Potash Project dunng thase times
of volatiity and uncertainty

Given the 1ssues we have witnessed In
world markets over the last six months,
we feel that thus decision was the nght
one and believe shareholders should
take comfort that the Company is well
funded for this next important stage of
our evolution

| would ke to thank all whe have
supported us n the local community

of North Yorkshire including landowners,
local councils and business people, for
helping us to achieve our progress to
date We are well placed to reach the
goals articulated in the Detaled Scoping
Study released in Apnit this year, but

it will require hard work, attention to
detall and, most importantly, innovation
and creative thinking We have already
demonstrated our ability to look at

the York Potash Project differently

to others and we believe in continually
questioning conventional thinking

as we encounter the challenges

that emerge between today and

project success

Over the next 12 months, there Is
much work to be done and we expect
to hire many skilled personnel, some of
whom will be in construction focused
roles and an increasing number of
whom will be permanent operational
staff This will benefit the local North
Yorkshire community

The UK Parliament has discussed a
focus to ‘re-industrialise Britain® and 1t
IS our view that the York Potash Project
meets and exceeds all the cniteria to
help Bntain, and in particular North
Yorkshire to achiave this We aim to
create a long term, envircnmentally
sustainable, safe, economically
attractive and mternationally signficant
potash business We believe our Project
wili not only provide real economic
stimulus to the country and the region,
but also help positicn Bntain as

a proactive player at the forefront

of the challenge to create global

food security

THANK YOU FOR YOUR INTEREST
AND SUPPORT.

RUSSELL SCRIMSHAW
Chairman
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A YEAR IN REVIEW

A YEAR OF SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS AT THE YORK POTASH PROJECT
SUPPORTED BY KEY CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS.

APR/MAY/JUN 2011 @

APPOINTMENT

Appointment of
Peter Woods
Non-Executive
Director

PLANNING

Initial planning
application approved
for SM1 and SM2

JUL/AUG/SEP 2011 @

 oRILLING._ S

Commencement of
SM1 drilling

[ PLANNING

Planning application
approved for a total of
six dnll holes

OCT/NOV/DEC 2011 @

W

Preliminary coring results
from SM1 {indicating 65m
of polyhalite)

[ APPOINTMENT

Appointment of
Graham Clarke
Operations
Director

 APPOINTMENT

Board restructure.
Russell Scrimshaw
Chairman and

Chris Catiow,
Deputy Chairman

==

Assay results for SM1

[ FLANNING

Planning application
approved for
three further drill holes




JAN/FEB 2012

®

W

Appotntment of
Lord Hutton
Non-Executive
Director

W

Prellminary conng results
from SM2

EQUITY PLACEMENT

£55 million equity placement
(26 January 2012)

W

Announcement of
Jason Murray
CFO and Finance
Director

MAR 2012

RESULTS B

Assay results of SM2

| APPOINTMENT

Appointment of
Sir David Higgins
Non-Executive
Director

=

Preliminary coring results
from SM3

APR/MAY/JUN/JUL 2012

W

Detailed Scoping Study
confirming technical and
economic viability of YPP

| ESULTS B

Assay resulits for SM3
and SM3 deflection

LAUNCH

Launch of York
Potash Foundation

RESOURCE STATEMENT

1.35 billion tonnes Maiden
Resource Statement
l.argest and highest grade
polyhalite resource globally

| APPOINTMENT

Appointment of
Alan Watling
MD of York Potash

W

Preliminary coring results
from SM4 and SM4 deflection
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CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S

STATEMENT

THIS YEAR HAS BEEN ONE OF GREAT ACHIEVEMENT

AND PROGRESS BUT ALSO SIGNIFICANT LEARNING
FOR THE COMPANY, AS WE CONTINUE TO RAPIDLY
DEVELOP OUR FLAGSHIP ASSET, THE YORK

POTASH PROJECT

On behalf of the entire Sinus team, | am
pleased to provide the following update
on the progress of the Company over
the last vear in executing our strategic
plan to become one of the world's
leading potash producers

SAFETY

In January 2011 we committed
ourseives to a safaty goal of Zero Harm
This 1s the highest and in our view the
only standard under which a mining
company should operate

As we continue to instil this commitment
Into our team and contractors, we
recognise that safety performance to
date on the exploration drilling sites has
been below industry standard with three
lost ttme incidents resulting in seven
days lost We will not be satisfied until
we reach our target of Zero Harm

As we move Into the new financial year,
we have increased our team’s vigilance
on safety and in particular contractor
selection and retention We have also
appointed a dedicated safety officer to
ensure appropriate traimng, monitoring
and corrective actions are taken to
enable us to achieve our goal of Zero
Harm There can be no compromise on
safety and | trust all shareholders share
this commitment

MILESTONES

In the past year, the Company has
successfully confirmed the world-class
potential of its flagship York Potash
Project and has put in place the

wital foundations to delver financing,
construction and production as quickly
as possible

PEOPLE - THE KEY TO
SUCCESSFUL DEVELOPMENT

The continued development of the
management team has been a highlight
for Sinus We have been successful

in bringing a depth of experience,
leadership and knowledge that will

be invaluable as we rapidly develop

the York Potash Project

Graham Clarke joined us in Navember
2011 as Operations Director from
Cleveland Potash Limited Graham was
Managing Director and spent 26 years
at the Boulby potash mine in North
Yorkshire (12 miles to the north-wast of
the York Potash Prgject), the UK’s only
operational potash mine and the world's
only polyhalite mine Graham bnngs
urique Insights on all aspects of a large-
scale underground potash mine and
processing facility and was instrumentat
in commissioning Boulby's polyhaite
extraction project

Jason Murray was appointed Finance
Director and Chief Financial Officer

N February 2012 With 20 years’
experience In senmor positions at Bank
of Amenica Memli Lynch, Citigroup and
J P Morgan, Jason brings outstanding
market leading credentials 1n fundraising
across many sectors and most
importantly, the mining sector

'n June 2012 we announced the
appointment of Alan Watling as
Managing Director of York Potash

Alan will be responsible for leading the
York Potash Project through Feastbility
Studies to the commencament of
producticn Alan has an unrivalied
track-record of dehvering large scale
projects inte production, having led the
construction and development for both
Afncan Minerals Limited and Fortescue
Metals Group Limited

The current blend of Board and
management resources provides Sinus
with the required skill base to ensure
that all aspects of the York Potash
Project are being addressed and
advanced to the highest standards as
quickly as possible




RESOURCE - HIGH QUALITY
PROJECTS ARE UNDERPINNED
BY WORLD CLASS GEOLOGY

In July 2011, leveraging a significant
amount of historical data, the Gompany
commenced a drilling programme to

1 Prove that the York Potash Project
18 the world's largest resource of
polyhalite,

2 Define sufficient quantity and quality
of mineral into the hughest category
of resource to underpin the financing
of a large-scale potash project, and

3 Identify the optimum mine head
location and commence mining
operations

In June 2012, we were pleased to
announce that from just three holes

we achieved our first goal — confirming
the York Potash Project as the world's
largest and highsst grade resource of
polyhalte The Inferred Resource of

1 35 bilion metnc tonnes of 88 7%
palyhalite (25 6% K,SQ,) was estimated
from just two per cent of the York
Potash Project area

The focus of the dnlling programme
for the balance of calendar year 2012
will be to achieve our second goal of
sufficient defined resource to underpin
financing of the York Potash Project

Following the outstanding resuits from
our first three holes, the driling
programme has been refocused to the
northern onshore section of the Project
area Thisis due to the quality of the
results from drilling in that area and
alsc the proximity to our preferred port
location of Teesside As a result, we are
close to finalising where we beheve the
mine head will be located, thereby
fulfiling the third goal of our programme

DETAILED SCOPING STUDY
- DEMONSTRATED THE
OUTSTANDING ECONOMIC
POTENTIAL OF A WORLD
CLASS RESOURCE

The complstion of the Detalled Scoping
Study ("DSS™ confirmed the techmical
and economic viability of the York
Potash Project and was the result of
over nine months of studies by expert
third party consultants in the areas of
shaft design, miming, ore transportation,
processing, energy efficiency,
infrastructure, shipping and marketing

The DSS outlined a phased approach
to development with a three year initial
construction pernod, targeting first
production at the beginning of 2017

A phased apprcach was used to reduce
external financing requirements and
optimise market entry for all products
produced

THIS YEAR HAS

BEEN ONE OF

GREAT ACHIEVEMENT
AND PROGRESS:

SUCCESSFULLY confirmed the
world class potential of the York
Potash Project, announcing the
world’s largest and highest grade
resource of polyhalite

DRILLING programme for the
remamnder of 2012 focused to
achieve our second goal of a
sufficient defined resource to
underpin financing of the Project

POSITIVE sustainable development
18 the only way that Sinus will
develop a project

THE LAUNCH of the York Potash
Foundation will allow the local
North Yorkshire community to
directly benefit from the Project

ADDED a depth of expenence,
leadership and knowledge to
our management that will be
invaluable as we rapidly develop
the Project

LONG TERM GROWTH In potash
demand shows no sign of slowing

SIRIUS 15 focused on becoming
one of the world’s most important
and low cost potash supphers
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The DSS estimated a Free on Board
("FOB") {Teesside) cash operating

cost of US$225/t! of Sulphate of
Potash (“SCP") which delivers robust
economics on its own However after
accounting for the potential value of the
by-products of magnesium sulphate

(as epsomite) and gypsum, the FOB
cash operating cost of US$65/t' of SOP
would place the Project towards the
bottom of the global potash cost curve

The estimates in the DSS demonstratad
that the Project delivers significant
positive free cash flow and an after-tax
nst present value exceeding US$6 0
bilion Importantly, as with all major
capital projects, the DSS demonstrated
the value creation of becoming a
producer On the day production
commences, the DSS estimated that
the after-tax net present value of the
Project increases to over US$11 0
billlon' This also demonstrates why we
are commutted o rapid development,
with the value for today's shareholders
significantly enhanced each day earlier
we can commence production

The Company Is also pursuing a number
of optimisation opportunities that have
the potential to reduce our capital and
operating costs, IMprove our access

to market, and/or broaden our product
otffering These include

* CONTINUOUS HAULAGE SYSTEM —
the use of continuous haulage systems
versus continuous miners with shuttle
cars as selected in the DSS

* DRY PIPELINE TRANSPORTATION —
transportation of dry ore for greater
operational flexibility, energy savngs
and transport of other minerals
Including Munate of Potash {“MOP")
and road salt

1 Al cost estimates +/- 35% Operating cost excludes
royaltles and maintenance capex. Net present values ara
after-tax real project cashflows, discount rate 8% res,
maintenance capex i 3% of capex for processing and
2% for all other capex

¢ PARTIAL OFF-SHORE PROCESSING
- the option to buld a processing and
distnbution hub in the Middie East
to service Astan, Afncan and Middle
Eastern markets and take advantage
of lower energy costs, without a
significant impact on the potential for
UK suppty or job creation

LOGISTICS OPTIMISATION — utilising
suitable docks and leading areas in

the Teesside area to handle large
Capesize vessels, providing flaxibility to
employ appropnately sized ships that
best suit the transportation routes and
customers

¢ BY-PRODUCT PROCESSING -
opportunity to participate in the
downstream processing of gypsum
into wallbeard and constructron
related products, and processing of
magnesium sulphate into higher value
magnesium based products

ADDITIONAL PRODUCTS - sale

of polyhalite as a direct application
fertiliser containing the iImportant
macro-nutnents of potassiurmn,
magnesium, sulphur and calciumn
The mine will also have the ability
to produce road sailt for the UK and
European markets

An mportant part of the next phase

of work Is to reduce the number

of development options to a single
construchion case to be taken into the
Feasibility Studies It 1s our current
expectation that these will be ¢completed
in phases QOur goal 1s to have a Pre-
Feasibility Study cempleted by the end
of 2012 and Detailed Feasibility Studies
on the mme and transport system
compieted in the first half of 2013

This will enable the commencement

of early construction on the cntical
path development of the shaft access
system The Detauled Feasibility

Study on the remaining aspects s
expected to be completed by the
second half of 2013

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY -
PARALLEL PROCESSING AND
COMMITMENT TO INNOVATION

The world's long term growth in potash
requirements shows no sign of slowing
and Sinus ts focused on becoming
one of the world’s most important and
low cost potash supphers through
development of the York Potash
Project The rapid development of the
Project will enable Sinus to break into
the heavily consolidated global potash
market and continue to develop assets
to increase market share and strategic
mportance

The Sinus strategy of rapid growth

will be achieved through parallel
development of a number of work
streams based on the principles of
nsk, reward and innovation As
demoanstration of this work plan in
action, a number of cntical path
dehverables for the York Potash Project
In the past year were undertaken in
paraliel, for example

* The dnling programme commenced
at the same tme as the DSS, and

* Environmental 12 month baseline
ecological studiss were commenced on
vary broad areas in September 2011 to
create an early window for applications

Typical development philosophy
would be to undertake each of these
work streams in sequence dnlling to
define a resource, engineering studies
to assess economics and techmical
development options, site selection,
and then ecological studies on those
sites In sequence this would have
taken almost three years, instead we will
have completed all of these within 15
months — less than half the tradional
time This 13 a significant saving in tme
and has positioned Sirus to maximise
shareholder value




Innovation in the development of the
York Potash Project 1s achieved by an
unwillingness to accept “rules of thumb”
or “traditional metheds” Unencumbered
by systems and bureaucracy, Sinus can
aggressively pursue innovative solutions
to the challenges nvolved in large-scale
project development

An example of innovation from the

DSS 1s our underground development
concept This system uses the geology
of North Yorkshire to cur advantage,
with decline tunnels dnven by high
speed tunnel boring machines to
access an intermediate sinking and
hoisting station From this station, shaft
boring machines will sink the vertical
shafts from 700m to a depth of around
1,400m Each of the systems and
ideas in this concept are establkshed
and proven techniques from the civil
tunneling industry, combined to deliver
a solution that potentially reduced
construction time and capital cost

In addition, the system increased the
installed hoisting capachy to over
15mtpa of ore

These benefits are significant in
themselves but the concept also
delivered a low surface impact for the
Project In our view, this has the added
benefit of fulfiling our goa!l of submitting
a robust planning apphcation which
meets the environmentally sustainabie
chjectives of the North York Moors
National Park Further engineering
work continues to take this system
forward by analysing in greater detail
the construction schedule and technical
challenges

POSITIVE SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT - THE ONLY
WAY SIRIUS WILL DEVELOP
A PROJECT

The key milestone for 2013 will be
receiving approvals to undertake
development of the York Potash Project,
specifically those needed from the North
York Moors National Park To obtain
these approvals, 1t 1s necessary for
Sinus to adopt and marmntamn the highest
standards As such, in January 2011 the
Company adopted the Principles of the
Sustanable Development Framework
from the International Council on Metals
and Mining In addition, the Company
has the following bread objectives,

~ Keep the local community, authorities
and their representatives informed,

- Do things the nght way In the local
community,

- Be transparent and cpen in the way
we operate, and

— Conduct thorough public consultation
before submitting planming
applications

One of our most exciting developments
in 2012 to date was the launch of the
York Potash Foundation The
Foundation will allow the local North
Yorkshire community to directly benefit
from the successful development and
operation of the York Potash Project by
providing funding of approximately

£3 milion per annum at Phase 1
production to local projects across a
wide range of areas including
community facilities, educational
projects and environmental initiatives

1"
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FINANCE - THE CAPITAL
WE USE TO DELIVER
OUR STRATEGY

The Group made a loss for the year
ended 31 March 2012 of £60 1 million,
compared to a loss of £71 million in the
previcus year The increase reflects an
impairment charge of £571 milhon and
the higher level of development activity
at the York Paotash Project, which was
acquired during the final quarter of

the last financial year The imparment
charge incurred in the year related to
the wnie down of the Canning Basin,
Adavale and Dakota Salts projects

In January 2012 the Company
successfully raised £55 millien of
equity capital through a placement

to approximately 70 institutional
investors from around the world

The transaction was more than two
times oversubscribed demonstrating
significant demand from quality
institutions Our decision to INcrease
the size of the capital raising to fund
the driling programme and Feasibility
Studies has been justified by the
increasing volatility and short-term
uncertainty subseguently seen in globat
markets The Group's year end cash
and cash eguivalents position was
£54 3 million

The finance team, led by Jason Murray,
remain focused on progressing the
multiple pathways available for financing
the Project We believe we have a strong
and experienced finance team and are
confident of abtaining the capital the
Company needs as required with the
goal of minimising dilution to existing
shareholders

THE YEAR AHEAD

Sinus has come a leng way and the
level of intensity will continue to escalate
as we progress the York Potash Project
from feasibiity into construction

In the tast year we have seen the
world’s markets come under significant
pressure These pressures will require
flexibility on our approach to the
ultimate make-up of the financing of
the York Potash Project, but we do

not believe they will be a barner to us
acheving our goals

We are rapidly approaching a pericd

of public consultation and increased
external focus on the Company

Sirtus 1s working with numerous local
government agencres to achieve all of
the necessary approvals to enable the
development of the York Potash Project
to proceed without unnecessary delays
To ensure an Inclusive process, we
have hosted numerous community and
stakeholder meetings at which our team
has presented and fielded questions
regarding the nature and impacts of the
Project We will continue this community
engagerment to ensure all parties are
kept up to date as our studies continue
and further details are confirmed

The focus of the Company I1s clearly

on the flagship York Potash Project,
and consistent with this focus, the
Company has written down the value of
the remainder of the portfollo However,
Sinus remains committed to developing
a portfolio of projects and continues to
move forward on others on a balanced
risk and reward basis In addition, the
Company will continue to sesk out and
review other potash opportunities that
can add value for its shareholders and
align with its diversified geographucal
strategy

During the next 12 months when the
Company’s strategy ta become a
potash producer will be shaped, it 1s
unlikely significant progress will be made
on the portfolio assets We behieve this
focus of effort will deliver the greatest
value for all of our sharehoiders

While acknowledging the volume of
work reguired over the next year, | am
confident that Sinus has the people with
the necessary skilts, determination and
energy to achieve our goals | would

hke to thank the entire team and our
shareholders for @ach and everyone's
support and hard work to bring us
closer to the delvery of Sinus as the
NEW POTASH POWERHOUSE

Chris Fraser
Managing Director and CEO




INDUSTRY
OVERVIEW

WHY
FERTILISER?

ONE OF THE FUNDAMENTAL
CHALLENGES CURRENTLY FACED

BY COUNTRIES AROUND THE WORLD
IS THE NEED TO INCREASE
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTIVITY

TO MEET DEMAND FROM A
GROWING GLOBAL POPULATION
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FERTILISER MARKET

An expanding worldwide population,
in combination with nsing affluence
and rapid urbanisation, 1s dniving

the demand for food and more
nutnent dense diets A recent study
completed by the Food and Agncuiture
Organization (“FAQ") concluded that
crop production must increase 70%
by 2050 in order to address thesa
macro shifts, highlighting that future
food security i1s reliant on improving
productivity from avaitable arable land

Farmer margins are a fundamental
pre-requisite for increased agncuttural
productivity and the long term increase
in grain prices {CHART 1) lllustrates the
incentive for farmers to improve the yield
and qualtty of therr preduce

The challenge of improving agncultural
productivity to meet the food demands
of the future 1s complicated by an
ongoing reduction of availlable arable
land per capita The key to achieving the
required yields is increased, balanced
and sustainable nutrient fertilisation

This has been evidenced by the
unprecedented level of global fertiiser
consumption in 2041

REGIONAL FERTILISER
MARKETS

The demand for increased agricultural
productivity and growth in fertiliser
apphcation vanes between countries
and regions as a function of different
underlying drnvers Factors specific

to each country and region are
detalled below

CHINA

The unprecedented economic growth
achieved by China has led to rapid
urbarusation and nsing wealth of the
population Research by McKinsey

& Gompany suggests this trend 1s
expected to continue, with almost
one bilhon Chinese people expected
to lve in metropolitan cities with the
urban econemy to contribute 90 per
cent of GDP by 2025 Analysis of the
dietary composition of the rural and
urban Chinese population suggests
that those hving within cities consume
significantly more fruit, vegetables
and meat A significant increase in
Chinese agricuitural productivity I1s
required to accommodate this dietary
shift, which will further drive demand
and gpplication of fertiisers to iImprove
crop output CHART 2 ilustrates

the rapid shift in Chinese dietary
consumption with a sharp increase in
the consumption of fruit and vegetables

INDIA

In addition to the factors impacting the
demand for fertiiser in China, Incha 1s
encumbered with significantly poorer
soll conditions and a more rapid rate

of population growth By 2030, India’s
popufation 1s expected to grow by 100
mithon people overtaking China as the
most populous country in the world
India 1s also expected to have one of the
fastest growing econamies in the world,
with the International Monetary Fund
("IMF") forecasting that India will be the
fifth largest economy by 2020 and the
thurd largest by 2050

India 1s the world’s second largest
producer of sugar, nce, wheat, fruit
and vegetables with the majonty being
consumed domestically In order to
feed its growing population, Increasmng
crop productivity 1s an urgent priornity
and 1s high on the agenda of tha
Indian government who have heavily
subsidised nutrient fertilisers over

the past 20 years Earler this year,

the government reduced the subsidy
rates for the 2012 and 2013 planting
years, cutting them by 10% and 33%
respectively This may initiate an
important transition to a more market-
based approach for crop and input
prices, which 1s crugial to achieve long
term agricultural productivity growth




BRAZIL

Brazil 15 the world's fifth-largest country
by area and the largest in terms of
arable land Brazil 1s one of the few
countries that can still add crop
acreage, In particular by expansion

In the potassium-deficient Cerrado
region The combination of these
factors puts Brazil In a unique position
to lead the global agriculiural sector

in the madium to long term, but also
highlights the requirement of potash

to maximise productivity from these
regions With an abundant supply of
naturat resources, water and land, Brazil
has the opportunity to become the
‘world's pantry’, supplying the global
markets while also providing for its

own population

SOUTH-EAST ASIA

In addition to the economic
development within China and India,
there has been substantial growth within
other regional Asian countries over the
past decade A sigmficant dietary shift 1s
also being witnessed in thesa countries,
resulting In an Increased demand for
fertilisers to produce higher yielding
crops to meet agricultural productivity
requirements This trend 1s particularly
prevaient in South-East Asia, a world-
leading producer of rubber and palm o4,
which s constrained by a low amount

of arable land per capita As a result of
these factors, there has been a 40%
Increase In the application of fertilisers

In the region over the last two decades
and this trend I1s expected to continue

AFRICA

A histonical lack of investrnent in African
agriculture has resulted in low yields,
poor crop gqualty and insufficient foocd
security However, mcreased nvastment
In the agrcultural growth region of
Sub-Saharan Afnica has triggered both
agricultural and economic development
This investment 1s a combination of
both public sector, particularly in
infrastructure and water supples, and
private sector investments This early
-stage development region provides an
exciting opportunity for businesses to
supply (nnovative agncultural solutions
through the application of fertiiser
products to improve yields, crop guality
and ensure food security

NORTH AMERICA

North Amenca remains an agncultural
powerhouse producing approximately
40% of the world’s com, soybeans
and wheat These three crops account
for 80% of North America’s potash
consumption Biofuel crops (e g corn)
now compete for land and boost

the requirements for significantly
higher yields

Robust dermand and increasing prices
for agricultural commodities have
resulted in unprecedented tarmer
margins and income in North America
The region should be able to leverage its
strong cash position and best-in-class
agrehomic practices to cater for surging
crop demand from emerging markets

EUROPE

Europe 1s a significant yet relatively
mature and stable fertiser market, which
is largely supphed by locat producers

In Russia, fertiktser consumption has
traditionally been small, however, in
recent years there has been an upward
trend 1n application to drive production
of grain crops and capitalise on the
increased crop demand of neighbouring
countrras with rapid economic and
population growth
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NUTRIENTS

Nutrients are fundamental for crop
growth, providing specific functions

in the plant’s metabolism They are
complementary to each other and a
deficiency in any of them will hmit crop
growth and quahty Nutrients

are classified by ther importance

to plant growth

MACRO-NUTRIENTS

PRIMARY NUTRIENTS
Nitrogen (N}, Phosphorus (P}, and

Potassium {K}

SECONDARY NUTRIENTS
Magnesium {(Mg), Calcium {Ca),

and Sulphur ()

Due to their mportance, the primary
and sscondary nutrients are also
referred to as the six ‘'macro-nutrients’

supples all of these four nutrients in one
rmineral and which concevably provides
a slower release of nutnents than more

Polyhalite has the chemical composition
of K,80, MgS0, 2CaS0, 24,0 which
gives Sirius the ability to become an
important contnbutor to the supply

of four of the six macro-nutrients for

food production, including potassium,
magnesium, calcium and sulphur

Polyhalite, as a raw ore, has the

potential to be an effective fertiliser that

convenbonal sources In addimon,
the four macro-nutrients can also be
separated and appilted to the soil In
1solation or any combination to meet
specific requirements

POLYHALITE NUTRIENT COMPARISON

POTASSIUM MAGNESIUM SULPHUR CALCIUM
NUTRIENT TYPE MACRO MACRO MACRO MACRO
BENEFITS Improves plants’ take- Faciitates photosynthesis Assists several Supports root and leaf
up of nitrogen and metabolic processes development
phosphorus Works synergistically with {photosynthes:s,
nitrogen and potassium starch, sugar and Strengthens plant
Increases resistance to to enhance crop quality protein formation) structure and resistance
drought, frost, salinity and yield to damage
and diseases Assists all synthesis
Assists protein and Counteracts the sifect
Faciitates bulding of vitamin synthesis for Enhances plant/root of alkah salts and
protein, photosynthesis growth growth and resistance organc aclds
and fruit quality to cold weather
CROPS Fruit Citrus fruit Rapeseed Apples
Vegetables Banana Citrus Fruit Pears
Caorn Tobacco Soybean Cabbage
Fice Coffee Sugar Cane Tobacco
Sugar Qi Palm Cabbage Potato
Soybeans Potato Banana Corn
Wheat Tomate Tea Tomato
Sweet Potato
MARKETS WITH Brazil North Amenca China India
HIGH NUTRIENT- Chmna Latin America Incia tatin America
DEFICIENCY India South-East Asia Sub-Saharan Africa South-East Asia
China Brazi
india North America
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POTASH (POTASSIUM)

Potash 1s the common term for a group
of potassium containing minerals, the
most common of which 1s potassium
chioride Potash s produced in only

12 countnes in the world with Canada,
Russia and Belarus having a combined
share of 90% of the global reserves

The potash market I1s export-onented
as most large and fast-growing markets
have no or imited production capacity
Trade generally accounts for 80% of
total potash demand with the largest

WHY DO CROPS
NEED POTASH?

* Yield will be matenally adversely
impacted after two years of no
use of potash

Potash application significantly
increases crop yield and size
(See CHART 3 below)

regional markets including China
(20%), Brazil (15%), the US (15%) and
India (10%) China, India, and Brazit
are experiencing the most significant
growth in fertliser demand where

the fundamental demand drivers of
urbarisation, population and economic
growth are the most prevalent

In addhtion to these macro-drivers for
increased agricultural productivity,
China, India and Brazil have unique
charactenstics specific to potash, which
will underpin demand for this fertiiser
China and India have historically

The application of potassium wvia potash
improves plants’ take-up of nitrogen and
phosphorus, increasing resistance to
diseases and droughts, and facilitating
the process of photosynthesis These
benefits lead to Increased yields,
product quahty and shelf Iife

under-applied potash relative to the
other pnmary nutnents of nitrogen

and phosphorus, implying a significant
‘catch-up potential’ Furthermore, India
has no domestic source of potassium
and Brazll faces productivity challenges
due to its naturally potassium-

deficient tropical soills which require a
disproportionately high usage of potash

Of the three primary nutnients, potash
has the greatest demand growth
potential as dlustrated by the
International Fertiliser Industry
Association (“IFA"} data in (CHART 4)

17
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POTASH PRODUCTS

The most common form of potash

1s potassium chloride, or Muriate of
Potash ("MOP"), which accounts for
approximately 90% of gioba! production
Although widely applied 1n all types of
farming, MOP 15 pnmarnly used for row
crops The balance of global production
15 produced as Sulphate of Potash
{"SOP"), which has historically attracted
a price premium to the MOP price due
to its higher production costs, imitad
avallability, and superior bengfits for
chloride-sensitive crop types

BENEFITS OF SOP APPLICATION

IMPROVED CROP GROWTH Improves yields

HIGHER CROP QUALITY

Boosts the formation of quality parameters {yield, size, taste)

LONGER PRODUCE SHELF-LIFE

Results in better storage and transport characteristics

IMPROVED NITROGEN USE

improves the accumulation of nitrogen

DEALS WITH CHLORIDE SENSITIVITY

Essential for chlonde sensitive crops

AVAILABLE SULPHUR

As 80, the 515 readily available

NO ACIDULATION

Has no effect on soil acidity or alkalinity (pH)

HIGH SOLUBILITY

Ideal for fertigation and foliar applications

HIGHER POTASSIUM APPLICATIONS

Lowest salt iIndex of all potash fartiisers

sSOP MOP
CHEMICAL COMPOSITION K80, KCl
SOURCE QOccurs naturally (e g within polyhalte) Qocurs naturally as sylwite, sylvinite

or produced in the Mannheim Furnace and carnallite
process {reaction of sulphuric acid

and MOP}
2011 PRODUCTION (MT) 84 560
% POTASSIUM OXIDE K,0) 50-53% 60-62%
USAGE Preferred where the chlonde 1on in Primarily used for row crops

MOP may be detrimental to crop
quality (e g frutts, vegetables, tobacco)




BY-PRODUCTS

Two by-products can be produced

from processing raw polyhalite ore into
sulphate of potash, magnesium sulphate
and gypsum

1. MAGNESIUM

SULPHATE MgSO, 7H,0
(EPSOMITE}
2 GYPSUM CaSO, 2H,0

MAGNESIUM SULPHATE

Magnesium is one of the six macro-
nutrients essential for crop growth and
food production It plays a vital role In
the photosynthesis process without
which crops would not grow It works
synergistically with both nitrogen and
potassium to enhance crop qualty
and yield Magnesiurmn is also needed
for all processes that require energy,
such as protein and vitamin synthesis
In this context it works together with
phosphorus to transfer the internal
energy required far crop growth

There are three forms of magnesium
that can be applied to the soit

THE CARBONATE FORM: Magnesite
and dolomite

THE OXIDE FORM Magnesium oxide

THE SULPHATE FORM Kieserite
and epsomite, which I1s a hydrated
magnesium sulphate

The advantages that magnesium
sulphate has over other magnesium
compounds include

* Additional provision of a small
amount of another essential nutnent,
sulphur, and

* High solubiity Magnesium oxides
and carbonates have a very slow
solubility, which means they release the
magnesium at rates that are insufficient
for the required crop uptake

In addition to magnesium suiphate,
further potential magnesium
by-products are avalable to Sinus
through further downstream processing
and include magnesium oxide and
magnesium hydroxide Refer to page
20 onwards for addiional information
on these potential by-products

GYPSUM

Gypsum 1s commonly mmed from
natural deposits or produced
synthetically as a by-product in the
flue gas desulphunsation process In
coal-fired power stations Although
gypsum 1s abundantly avallable 1n
certain parts of the world, a significant
quantity 1s too low grade to be
economically processed

Gypsum is used N a variety of
applications {e g as a fertiliser in the
agricultural industry) but it 1s most
commonly used In the production of
wallboard {also known as plasterboard)
for residential or commercial
construction purposes Gypsum-based
wallboard 1s a successful and effective
buillding matenial due to its relatively low
production costs and fire resistance
properties Gypsum 1s the main residue
of the polyhalite leaching process

It only needs to be washed and dred
to increase the purity to make it a
readily applicable input for the
wallboard industry

19
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THE BY-PRODUCTS AND FURTHER POTENTIAL BY-PRODUCTS AVAILABLE
TO SIRIUS FROM THE PROCESSING OF RAW POLYHALITE ORE

BY-PRODUCTS

PRODUCT USES COMMENTARY

MAGNESIUM SULPHATE = Highly soluble magnesium fertiiser ¢ The palm ol mdustry in South-East Asia s

e Feadstock for downstream the largest consumer
magnestum products (see further
by-products below)

GYPSUM * Wallboard production * Market growth in wallboard and cement

« Additive to cemant driven by increased demand from the
construction industry (n emerging markets
such as Asia (Inda and China), Brazl
and Africa

The mportance of gypsum as a calcium-
based fertiliser 1s iIncreasingly recognised
within the fertiiser industry Calcum s
particularly important for the vield, quality
and storage capacity of high-value crops
such as fruit and vegetables

* Agricultural fertiiser

FURTHER POTENTIAL BY-PRODUCTS

PRODUCT USES COMMENTARY

MAGNESIUM OXIDE + Refractory grades furnace lining * Demand shift to higher grade refractortes
in steel/cement * From 2014 a potential shortage in high

* Chemical grades environmental, refractory grade magnesia 1s expected

agnculture and hydrometallurgical
processing

MAGNESIUM * Environmental uses, primarily * Rapudly growing market

HYDROXIDE m water treatment and flue gas « Small high value segment
desulphunsation

Flame retardant applcations

INFORMATION SOURCES

FERATILISER MARKET NUTRIENTS. BY-PRODUCTS.

Food and Agriculture International Fertiliser Industry Assoclation Roskill

Orgarnization Fertecon “Potash Report 2012 Freedonia

McKinsey & Co The Sulphur Ingtitute 2012 Fartlisar Week
International Monetary Fund World Steel Organisation

Goverament of incha




OPERATIONS
REPORT

HIGHLIGHTS
FROM THE
YORK POTASH
PROJECT

COMPLETED DRILLING AND ANALYSIS
FOR THREE BOREHOLES, CONFIRMING
THE EXTENT AND HIGH QUALITY NATURE
OF THE POLYHALITE

COMPLETION OF THE DETAILED
SCOPING STUDY

MAIDEN NI 43-101 COMPLIANT
RESOURCE ANNOUNCED AT 1.35BN
TONNES OF 88 7% GRADE POLYHALITE -
THE LARGEST AND HIGHEST GRADE IN
THE WORLD

MINERAL RIGHTS SECURED OVER 85%
OF THE PROJECT AREA
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THE YORK POTASH PROJECT

DEVELOPMENT

In July 2011 a concept study was
initiated on the York Potash Project
{“YPP" or the “Project”) to analyse

and test the vanous options and
development alternatives available via
the appointment of consultants across
different fields of expertise In Apnl 2012,
the Company announced the complation
of the Detalled Scoping Study {*DSS")
which summarised the results of this
analysis and confirmed the technical and
economic viability of YPP

The DSS huighlighted that YPP has the
potential to be the largest low cost

SOP mine in the world and towards

the bottom of the global potash cost
curve The completion of the DSS
enables the Company to rapidly
progress to Feasibility Studies which will

further define and de-nsk the Project

i preparation for imbial financing A
modular and phased approach to
development will provide operational
and financing flexibility following an initial
three-year construction period, targeting
first production in early 2017

The current strategy 1S to develop YFPP
In two phases with Phase 1 producing
5 0 mtpa of polyhahte ore {1 4 mtpa of
SOP) at a capitaf cost of US$2 7 billion’
The Phase 2 expansion will increase
production to 15 0 mtpa of polyhalite
ore (41 mtpa of SOP} by 2024 at a
capital cost of USE3 3 billion!, which 1s
expected to be funded from internally
generated cashflows YPP has robust
cash FOB operating costs at US$225/t
of SOP and US$65/t' of SOP after
by-product credits for magnesium
sulphate and gypsum

1 +/-35% accuracy Operating costs exclude royalties and sustaining capital axpenditure Net present values are after-tax
real project cash flows discourt rate 8% real maintenance capex 3% of capex for processing and 2% for all other capex

These capital and operating cost
metrics deliver significant positive
cashflow in the second year of
production and a project after-tax net
prasent value of over US$6 O billion'
Significant opporturuties exist to
optimise YPP further and these will
be investigated as part of the
Feasibity Studies

As lllustrated in the table on page 23,
the Project has leading caprtal
expenditurs and operating expenditure
potental compared to a typical MOP
greenfields mine

The DSS also highlighted the low impact
sustanable development avalable

and the potential for the Project to
become one of North Yorkshire's largest
empioyers with the creation of over
1,000 drrect jobs at full production




YORK POTASH PROJECT ECONOMICS

TYPICAL GREENFIELDS MINE
MOP (KCI)’

TONNES OF POTASH
PRODUCTS

2 to 3 mtpa MOP

YPP POLYHALITE
SOP {K,SO)*

41 mtpa SOP

5 3 mipa SOP equivalent 2
6 5 mtpa MOP equivalent ?

CAPEX PER TONNE

~US$1,000 to US$1,800/t MOP

US$1.458/t of SOP

QF CAPACITY US$1,130/t SOP equivalent ?
US$924/t MOP equivalent ®
YEARS TO PRODUCTION 2 -6 years ~ 3 years
FOB OPEX/TONNE US$120/1 to US$190/t MOP US$65/t SOP after by-products *
US$225/t SOP before by-products §
RESOURCE with only 690 million metnc tonnes NOTES

In June 2012, the maiden NI 43-101
compliant Inferred Resource was
announced at 1 35 billon tonnes of

88 7% polyhalite, making It the largast
and highest grade polyhalite resource
in the world The Inferred Resource was
dernved from just the imitial three drill
holes, from an area representing only
two per cent of the project area

This compares to the January 2011
JORC Exploration Target of between

3 3 and 6 0 billion tonnes of 67% to 94%
polyhalite for the entire project area

of mineable polyhalite ore required to
defiver 50 years of production under

the DSS, the marden Inferred Resource
demonstrates the scale and significance
of this world-class deposit

The drilling programme 1s now focused
on resource definition to underpin

the financing of YPP The Company
expects that the rescurce estimate

will significantly increase in size and
confidence level as the ore body

rs upgraded inte the Indicated and
Measured Resource categories

I Source CRU, market reports and company
announcements

2. SOP equivalent inctudes value of by-products
of US$160/ on an SOP equivalent basis
{assuming a YS$550/ flat real SOP price)
Does not include any value for rock salt

3 MOP equivalent includes value of by-products
of US$160A and assurming & flat real MOP pnce
of US$4504 Does not include any valua for
rock saht

4. Phasa 2 capacity of 15mtpa polyhalte ore

5 Excluding royalties end sustaining
capital expenditure
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INFERRED MINERAL RESOURCE

SEAM WEIGHTED POLYHALITE AVERAGE CONTAINED
AVERAGE MATERIAL POLYHALITE K. SO,
THICKNESS {mt) GRADE (mt)
(m} (%)

SHELF 2512 628 58 87 73% 159 31

BASIN 2705 71725 89 57% 185 80

TOTAL 1,345.83 88 71% 344 91

1 Reductions of 15% for the Sheif Seern and 7 5% for the Basin Seam have been made

for barran zones and tectonic impact

MINERAL RIGHTS

Mrnerals in the UK, other than
hydrocarbons and gold {which belong to
the government), are generally owned by
the freshold owner of the surface land
unless a previous owner excluded them
from a sale of the land

In order to extract the minerals, Sinus
has had to gain the agreement of the
mineral nghts owner for extraction of
potash and other evaporate minerals
The offshore mineral nghts over an area
of 525 km? are owned by The Crown
Estate with whom Sirus has agreed an
option to lease An onshore agreement
has now been reached with the majonty
of large owners and small local owners
for between 70 and 140 years

With mineral nghts secured for over
88% of the project area of 808 km?,

the Company has considerable choice
in locating the best position for a

mine head whose final location will

be subject to environmental, geological,
topegraphical, and economic
considerations

PLANNING

The key planning consents the
Gompany will need to obtain in order
to undertake the development of the
Project are summansed as follows

Offshore mineral extraction

The Marine Management Organisation
(“MMO™} 15 the determining authority

for a Marine Licence for offshore
mineral extraction An Environmental
Impact Assessment {("EIA”) Screening
Request has been submitted to the
MMO providing evidence that an EIA

18 not required, and a formai response
was received which concurs with the
assumption that the proposal s not an
EiA development A hcence application
will be submutted during the second half
of 2012 The MMO then has a guideline
penod of eight weeks tc consider the
application and issue the Company with
a Marine Licence for Minera! Extraction

Onshore underground
extraction

The enshore underground extraction
and mine head location will be in The
North York Moors National Park and
therefore the North York Moors National
Park Authonty ("NPA") will be the
determining authonty The Company
has signed a Planning Performance
Agreement (“PPA") with the NPA This
agreement sets out protocols for both
the Company and the NPA unti! planning
permission 1s submitted and timeframes
incorporating an agreed maximum 16
week determination penod it commuts
both sides to prompt action in supplying
information and dealing with that
inforrmation once it has been submitted,
and allows the NPA to charge for such
promptness It 1s the Intention that both
the planning application and the EIA will
be submitted to the NPA by the end of
2012 It 1s anticipated that a decision
will be recewved in the first half of 2013




Onshore buried pipeline

A Development Consent Order under
the Planning Act 2008 1s required from
the National Infrastructure Directorate
("NID"), which was formerly known as
the Infrastructure Planning Commission,
for the proposed pipeline The NID

has provided its Screening Opinion on
the need for an EIA and it reflects the
Company’s view that the pipeline 1s
not an EIA development Studies will
be undertaken ragardless to establsh
the environmental effects of the slurry
pipeline proposals and to determine
the miilgation that can be implemented
In order to reduce effects to an
acceptable level

A detailled consultation exercise with

the public and statutory consultees

13 required prior to submission of the
apphication to the NID This wili mean
that all Issues should have been resolved
by the time of submission Compulsory
purchase powers arg availlable to the
Company If they are needed However,
the Company aspwes to obtain voluntary
agreements along the whole length of
the route

The decision making process under
the NID route allows for a six rnonth
penod of consideration by the NID after
a 28 day acceptance period Once the
NID has made a recommendation, the
Secretary of State has three months in
which to make the final decision This
time penod applies to all projects that
come under the Junsdiction of the NID

Processing plant facility

Planning permission will be required
from Redcar & Cleveland Borough
Council for the processing plant facility
at the Port of Teeside It 1s intended

to submit a planning application In

the fourth quarter of 2012 that seeks
outline planming permissicn in order to
astablish the principle of development
and acceptability of the proposals within
wide parameters This application will
need to be subject to an EIA because
the development meets the description
of the first Schedule of the appropnate
ElA Regulations and so a joint
Screening and Scoping Opinion
request will be made as soon as the
final site has been selected

Progress to date

Over the last 12 months, the York
Potash Project has applied for planning
permission for eight exploration
boreholes and received implementable
consents for all of them The team has
also facilitated the early commencement
of the seismic exploration gperation

In relation to the four major planning
applications, all planning approvals are
being progressed concurrently with
the am of being completed in the first
half of 2013 Teams of consultants
have been appomnted to support the
forthcoming applications and two
Screening Opinions relating to ElAs
have already been receved

The PPA which has bean entered

Into by the Company and the NPA s
an important gudeline document as

it sets out a timeframe within which
various tasks must be completed
Sinus i1s on track with architects
appointed and bnefed by the planming
team to contnbute to the stated aim of
menimising the tmpact on the fabnc of
the National Park
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OTHER PROJECTS

North Dakota -
Williston Basin

Following a driling programme from last
year, Sinus made the decision to evaluate
the area for additional, wable mineral
targets This allowed for a greater area

of consideration relating to exploration
activities Sinus, In conunction with its
partners North Rim Exploration and Boyd
PetroSearch, completed two regional
studies one for sylvinite and the other for
carnallite within the North Dakota portion
of the Williston Basin Due to the focus on
York Potash, na further work 1s planned in
the near future in North Dakota

AUSTRALIA - ADAVALE BASIN

Significant progress has been made this
past year with regards to the defintion and
refinement of the opportunites that may exist
within Sinus’ Adavale Project in Queensland,
Australa Major activities for the past year
include developing a primary technical and
economic model for the Adavale Synergy
Strategy and completion of a regional review
of the entire Adavale Basin Due to the focus
on York Potash, ne further work 1s planned
in the near future In Adavale Basin Work will
continue developing the intellectual property,
In relation to these tenements, on waste
water disposal, carbon sequestration, and
solar pond efficiency

AUSTRALIA - CANNING BASIN

Sinus and Boyd PetroSearch completed
a full review of the Rio Tinto seismic

data concluding that the Mallowa Salts
are of significant thickness and adeguate
depths for exploration This initiative
provided Sirus with basic regional
charactenstics of the salt layer within the
Canning Basin Project area in Western
Austraha Due to the focus on York Potash,
no further work is planned in the near
future on Canning Basin




SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

INTERNATIONAL
COUNCIL ON
MINING & METALS
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT
PRINCIPLES

PRINCIPLE 1

IMPLEMENT AND MAINTAIN
ETHICAL BUSINESS PRACTICES
AND SCUND SYSTEMS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRINCIPLE 2

INTEGRATE SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT CONSIDERATIONS
WITHIN THE CORPORATE
DECISION-MAKING PROCESS

PRINCIPLE 3

UPHOLD FUNDAMENTAL
HUMAN RIGHTS AND RESPECT
CULTURES, CUSTOMS AND
VALUES IN DEALING WITH
EMPLOYEES AND OTHERS
WHO ARE AFFECTED BY

OUR ACTIVITIES

PRINCIPLE 4

IMPLEMENT RISK MANAGEMENT
STRATEGIES BASED ON VALID DATA
AND SOUND SCIENCE

PRINCIPLE 5

SEEK CONTINUAL IMPROVEMENT
OF OUR HEALTH AND

SAFETY PERFORMANCE

PRINCIPLE 6

SEEK CONTINUAL
IMPROVEMENT

OF OUR ENVIRONMENTAL
PERFORMANCE

PRINCIPLE 7

CONTRIBUTE TO CONSERVATION
OF BIODIVERSITY AND
INTEGRATED APPROACHES TO
LAND USE PLANNING

PRINCIPLE 8

FACILITATE AND ENCOURAGE
RESPONSIBLE PRODUCT DESIGN,
USE, RE-USE, RECYCLING AND
DISPOSAL OF OUR PRODUCTS

PRINCIPLE 9

CONTRIBUTE TO THE SOGIAL,
ECONOMIC AND INSTITUTIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMMUNITIES
IN WHICH WE OPERATE

PRINCIPLE 10
IMPLEMENT EFFECTIVE AND
TRANSPARENT ENGAGEMENT,
COMMUNICATION AND
INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED
REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS
WITH CUR STAKEHOLDERS
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OVERVIEW

Sirus 1s committed to sustainable
development and a robust appreach
te Corporate Social Responsibility
{"CSR") Current CSR intiatives are
focused on the Company's flagship
project — the York Potash Project In
terms of its operations and impact

on the community, YPP 1s still in tts
temporary exploration phase However,
the Company has set out a postive
approach to working 1n the local
community In a way that will continue
throughout its planned rapid growth

At a strategic level, the Company

has adopted the ten sustainablity
principles set out by the International
Council on Mining and Metals (“ICMM”)
Thesse principles provide a framework
that will continue to guide the
Company In its operations and
decision making process

The commitment to a positive form of
corporate governance goes beyond
these broad principles In relation

to YPP, as it 1s a project of local,
national and international significance,
the Company has alsc adopted the
following broad objectives

* Keap the local community, authonties
and their representatives informed,

* Do things the nght way in the local
community,

* Be transparent and open in the way we
operate, and

* Conduct thorough public consultation
before any planning application 1s
submitted

ZERO HARM

Sinus 15 commutted to conducting
activities 1n a manner that mcreases
shareholder value through compliance
with and outperformance of regulatory
obligations in relation to occupational
health and safety Sinus has therefore
adopted the principle of Zero Harm as a
cere value

The Zero Harm policy apphes
throughout the business and will

be the first consideration in all of

the Company’s operations Sinus
subscribes to the belief that no work-
related \njury is acceptable and that
there must be continued and on-going
improvements in the preventative areas
of health and safety This objective
requires considerable commitmant,
effort and resources to ensure that

it 15 implemented and that there 1s a
continual comprehensive review and
improvement procass In place During
the financial year, thera has been
significant attention paid to health and
safety and a number of key targets are
detailed below

Sinus has adopted the following value
statement that 1s used not just in health
and safety but in every aspect of the
Company's operations

“Do the right things
and do them right”

This statement covers all aspects of

the Project from exploration through to
operation and with a commitment that
Sinus will ensure the highest operationat
standards are met throughout the
business In line with this statement,
and the commitment to Zero Harm,

the Company has

¢ Committed to comply with and
outperform all statutory requirements
with regard to health, safety,
environment and quality, and

* Committed to prowviding the
leadership, systermns, tools, training
and devslopment for the workforce
to ensure a safe and efficient
worlking environment

In July 2012 the Company also
appointed a Health, Safety and
Environmental Manager

Staff training

All YPP personnel that visit drilling sites
have been prowvided with ng mductions
for both the dnlling ngs commissioned
by the Company This has been
overseen by the dnlling contractor's
site supervisor and I1s part of the safety
culture that Sinus 1s instilling

The Company has been active in other
areas of health and safety training, from
traiming employees on how to use the
forklift truck in the dniling core stores to
training on dnving the Company's fleet
of four whee! drive vehicles

Sinus has also commissioned a number
of appropriate and formal training
courses to address the perceived key
rsk areas faced by the Company

These include

* MANUAL HANDLING All staff ikely
to be involved in physical activities
attended a ‘Manual handiing, pnnciples
and application’ course

®* RISK ASSESSMENT A '‘Risk
Assessment and Hazard Identification’
course was provided to YPP personnel

Drilling rig safety

In the financial year, a sigmficant
proportion of the physical operations
associated with YPP have been
conducted by the Company’s drilling
contractor The drilling contractor 1s
required to abide by the Company’s
pohcy of Zero Harm and adopt the
necessary procedures to implement
this policy The contractor has therefore
proactively engaged in a campaign to
instl a robust health and safety culture
within the contractor's workforce




The programme to increase awareness
of a continual safety improvement
culture has included

* DEDICATED STAFF - The dnlling
contractor has employed a new Health
& Safety Manager to oversee all of its
cperations At drilling sites there are
three dedicated safety representatives
per driling ng {one for each shift) who
are provided with financial incentives to
oversee safety matters and feedback
where improvements can be made
These representatives are being put
through an Institute of Occupational
Safety and Health {"IOSH") managing
safety course There 1s also an
ongoing process of ensurng that
the ng crews are put through a
behavioural safety course

* REGULAR SAFETY INSPECTIONS -
These are made by the YPP team,
In conjunction with the contractor,
to assess site access, future and on-
going operations

* PERFORMANCE REVIEWS AND
REWARDS - Rewards are offered
for meeting safety targets This may
Include small gifts to ndividuals or
providing specialist catenng events
onsite to reward staff for achieving
certain health and safety targets

During the financial year we recognise
that safety performance to date on the
exploration driling sites has been below
Industry standard with three lost time
incidents resulting in seven days lost
We will not be satisfied untl we reach
our target of Zero Harm There 15 an
on-going requirement from the
Company to ensure continuous
improvement amongst its contractors
Thus has resulted in ‘near misses' being
reguiarly recorded to aid this process,
which in itself 1Is an important part of
health and safety procedures as near
misses are the incidents less likely to
be reported

DRILLING OPERATIONS

The Company's most visible presence In
the local community has been through
its temporary drilling operations at YPP
As part of Sinus's commitment

to minimise the impact of its work, the
locations of the exploration boreholes
have been selected in areas that cause
as Iittle mpact to the local communities
as possible

Sigrificant effort has been applied to
ensure that drill sites are selected in
areas that do not damage sensitive or
protected landscapes or environments,
where they are likely to cause the

least possible disturbance for locat
communities, and, where they are able
to be restored to their onginal (or even
an improved) condibion Dniling sites
at the YPP go through the following
selection procedure

A SITE ASSESSMENT - Conducted
by land and geological teams,
including an intial assessment of
planning, ecological, environmental,
archasological, highways, visual
impact and noise considerations

B PLANNING - After site access
and compensation 1s agreed a full
planning application ts submitted
in¢luding specialist reports on
considerations detaled in point A
Any pre-commencement planning
conditions are then addressed

C SITE PREPARATION - A survey
of site and surrounding roads Is
conducted before any activity starts
The site 1s then fenced and top and
sub soils are removed and stored In
accordance with the Good Practice
Guide for handling soils, as published
by the Department of Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs (“DEFRA™} in
Aprl 2000

D DRILLING WORKS - Conducted In
accordance with our Driling Method
Statement, as agreed in advance
with the Environment Agency

E FULL SITE RESTORATION - Once
completed the boreholes are filled
with cement and capped, the
concrete platforms are removed and
the sub and top soils are replaced
and contoured The land ts then
replanted, fences and gates are
installed or replaced and any damage
to local roads caused by site the
traffic 1s reparred

SM1 - Hawsker

Situated on an agricultural field south-
east of Hawsker, SM1 dnling was
completed on 29 October 2011 An
improved accass point and gate was
instatled for the drilling perod and was
left In place as an agncultural entrance
after drilhng work was completed

SM2 - Howlett Hall

Situated on an agricultural field south-
east of Ugglebarnby, SM2 drilling

was completed on 29 January 2012
Due to a number of fluid loss zones
encountered during dniling the works
tock approximately 30 days longer than
expected As aresult, thea Company
made a donation of £500 towards

the Annual Parish Show by way of

an apology to local residents for any
inconvenience Dunng operations at
SM2 a concern was raised by a Whithy
Town Councilllor at the Council Meeting
on 12 September 2012 It related to
the impact of the ng lighting overnight
and specifically its effect on a local
resident iving down the valley to the
north of the site After consultation with
the dnlling ng supervisor, the Company
arranged for ighting ngs to be moved
and onentated at different angles and
specifically pointing the man ighting
ngs uphill towards the south of the site
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OTHER SITES

The Company 1s engaged in drilling
works at a number of other dniling
sites that will be fully restored in the
financial year 2012-2013 A number of
improvements are being made as part
of this work This includes installing
best practice passing places on Rakes
Lane {(SM3) as a long term benefit to
road safety and an agreement with
the NPA to leave a section of concrete
hard standing at SM4 to penodically
accommodate a mobile visitor centra
for the Hawk and Owl Trust, which
manages the nearby Fylingdales Moor

Following further feedback from a

local resident, the Company's drilling
contractors have also completed

a number of night tme tests on ng
ighting As a result, less lighting is now
used at all sites at night, a reduction of
8,000 watts of ighting




APPROACH TO
MINE HEAD DESIGN

Central to the Company's impact on
the local environment and community
will be its approach to the design of a
future mine head and required surface
infrastructure This 1s particularly
relevant given the location of the
resources which are beneath the North
York Moors National Park Sinus will
be leading the way and setting new
standards in how a mining operation
1s proposed through

* Conducting mineral processing away
from the mine head area, cutside of the
National Park

* Using a buned pipeline to transport ore
away from the National Park, which
will be unnoticeable to people once
installed and the land restored

® Innovative sunken/underground mine
head designs to minimise the visual
impact and surface area required

The Company has developed the
concepts of sub-surface or sunken mine
shaft head frames The top of the shafts
would therefore either be located below
ground at between 500-700 metres

and accessed two parallel dnft tunnels
or be sunken below ground level and
covered in an appropriately destgned
bullding This work has baen on-going
throughout the year and was publicly
announced mn the Company’'s DSS ¢on
30 Apnl 2012

These approaches would have a
number benefits for the local area when
compared {o a conventional solution
because they would reduce the surface
impact by removing the highly visible
head frames from the landscape

EDUCATION AND SKILLS

The Company has been active In the
educational skills sectar throughout

the financial year, with a view to

both encourage interest in the mine
development proposals amongst
younger people and the development of
the kind of skills a future operation will
require Work in this area has included

* PROFILE - Working closely with
Scarborough Borough Council to
raise awareness of YPP and the future
employment opportunities that will
axist In addition 1o meetings wath local
schools, colleges and uriversities, this
has included playing an active role in a
jont event with representatives from the
offshore wind industry {organised by
the Scarborough Borough Council) for
members of the local educational and
traming establishments




32

SIRIUS MINERALS PLC > ANNUAL REPORT 2012 > BUSINESS REVIEW > SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

* ENGINEERING WEEK - in October
2011 the Company prowided
sponsorship and had a display at the
Scarborough Engineenng Week The
event was targeted at local school
children and was organised by a local
engneerng business to showcase and
encourage careers in the engmneenng
sector The Company also committed to
buld on the success of this event and
provide sponsorship for the 2012 event

DEDICATED PERSONNEL -
Recognising the importance of having
relationships with the educational
sector from an early stage, the
Company has appointed an *Education
and Skills Manager’ The role
provides a point of contact between
the Company and local educational
establishments as well as someone
to coordinate future traning and

skills requirements

* SITE TOURS - Dunng the year a
number of guided tours of the dnlling
rng sites have been held to help nform
local groups on aspects of the dnling
and local geology Tours have been
prowided for local landowners, the
North East Yorkshire Geological
Trust members (see image above nght)
and students at Fyling Hall School
amongst others

OTHER COMMUNITY
INITIATIVES

The Company has engaged in a number
of other community nmittatives Much of
this has revolvad around keeping local
stakeholders informed of developments
at the Project and has resulted in staff
attending over 25 local Parish Council
or Area Parish meetings within the

area of interest This included at least
one mesting at each of the nine town
or Parish Councils within this area
There have also been meetings and
presentations arranged for other local
interest groups such as Rotary Clubs
and Chambers of Commerce

Local landowners within the YPP area
are key stakeholders in the overall
Project and have been kept informed at
regular intervals through letters, informal
events or meetings and conversations
with the Company’s local haison officers

The Company has also commitied
funds to local sponsorship including

the Whitby Regatta, one of the biggest
local events, after a public request from
organisers to support the popular event
in order to keep it running Cther smaller
sponsorships have been offered to the
North East Yorkshire Geolegical Trust,
Scarborough Rugby Club and Whitby
Rugby Club U15s

In ine with the Company's commitment
to kesping local people informed of
developments and proposals at YPP

it 1Issues its community newslstter
‘Update’ which s distnbuted widely
throughout the local area The Company
and YPP also maintain a regularly
updated websrie to provide information
on the Project and a dedicated email
address and community helpline to
allow people to relay comments

or concerns

THE YORK POTASH
FOUNDATION

The York Potash Foundation has

been set up to offer a local legacy
The details of the Foundation were
taunched publicly on 30 May 2012

The stated objectives of the Foundation
are 1o

* Advance education, including the
support of projects and traiming that
benefit people from the local area by
enhancing therr skills,

* Promote the general health and well-
being of the community,

* Advance environmental protection and
mprovement, ncluding enhancing the
local landscape,

* Advance cttizenship and community
development, including the
improvement of community facilities
te bnng together people in the local
area, and

¢ Relieve those In financial hardship,
particularly the long tern unemployed,
by helping them to gain skills

The Foundation will be an independent
organisation, hmited by guarantee and
separate from Sinus and YPP The
Company will enter into a formal binding
contract between the Foundation to
see It benefit from a 0 5% annual royalty
to ensure the longavity of funding

On the assumptions used in the DSS
this amounts to an annual payment of
approximately £3 million at Phase 1
production levels and approximately

£9 millon at Phase 2 production levels

The Foundation will be seeking to
register as a charity to ensure the
funding 1s used for the Foundation's
objectives (as set out above} It will be
run by Trustees, three of whom will

be appointed by the Company and
four of whom will be appointed by two
independent members




PRINCIPAL
RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The Board monitors spending against
the budget through monthly reporting
and meetings every two months

At the current stage of development of
the Company's projects, there are faw
meaningful key performance indicators
or comparatives to prior years

Progress towards the development of
YPP wilt be tracked against milestones
such as the announcement of rescurce
and reserve figures and completion of
the feasibility and other engineering
and environmental studies, and in due
course receiving planning consent for
the mine Resource estimates have
been prepared to NI 43-101 standards

In addition, the Company monitors its
share price performance refative to the
market and 1ts peers Since last year's
annual report the Company's share
price strengthened very significantly in
November before losing some of these
gains during 2012

The principal risks currently
identified for the Company are
as follows:

EXPLORATION, DEVELOPMENT
AND PRODUCTION RISK

Exploration, development and
production risks are inherent in the
mining industry It 1S impossible to
remove all risks or to establish for
certain the true extent of the size

and grade of an ore body However,
experence developed over many
years by the industry has establshed
methods for assessing, evaluating and
reducing the rnisks inherent in a project
The Company, with the assistance

of experts in thair respective fields, 1s
currently applying these methods to
the geological, mining, processing,
Infrastructure, environmental,
construction and other aspects of

its projects, the most advanced

of which 1s YPP

In June 2012 the Company announced
the maiden Inferred Resource for

YPP following an exploration drilling
programme to assess and guantify the
extent of the potash resources, and

to bring them to a level of certainty
categonised according to international
standards universally accepted within
the mining industry Exploration drilling
continues at YPP and resource figures
will be updated in both quantum and
resource category during the coming
pericd Future exploration drilling may
show less consistency In are body than
initial and historical dnill holes Should
this oceur, the Company will extend the
drilhing programme to prove sufficient
reserves, however, the area of interest
ts so significant, that any localised
inconsistency In the deposit 1s expected
to be insignificant

Other aspects of the development
nsk of YPP will be assessed dunng a
sequence of ever more detaled and
accurate engineernng studies of which
the DSS announced in Aprit 2012 was
the first stage Following the positive
results of this study, the Company has
now commenced Feasibility Studies
on the Project before moving to
construction The Feasibility Studies
will incorporate a wide range of other
studies performed both by suitably
qualified third parties and completed
internally wiich will cover all aspects
of the Project including resources,
environment, infrastructure, planning,
mining, processing, infrastructure and
markets There i1s no certainty that
these studies will ba positive or that
the Project will be developed into a
commercral mining operation

YPP may expernence construction and
schedule delays due to unforeseen
technical issues Detalled planning by
the management team and external
consultants will be completed prior

to project development through the
Feasibility Studies to de-risk the Project
before construction commences
Management continue to pursue alt
acceleration options avallable for YPP
to reduce the tme required to reach
first production

Following the rmine design to be
completed as part of the Feasibility
Studies, the Company may experence
unexpectedly difficult ground condittons
in the construction of the mmne Detalled
rock mechanics testing has already
commesenced, together with drilling

and seismic work to establish ground
conditions with some certainty Mining
at the depths required for the YPP 1s
not uncommon and the Company s
undertaking detailled analysis of various
mining methods to further de-nisk

this element

The proposed processing route of
polyhalite inito SOP has not been
previous!y used on a commercial scale
Processing consultants K-Utec have an
existing piot plant faciity which i1s being
adapted for testing the YPP polyhalite
as part of the Feasibility Studies K-Utec
has experience in the testing of
polyhalite through various process
routes, which the Company will utilise to
provide development flexiblity There

15 no certanty that a techmcally and
economically successful process route
will be identified, but inal testwork has
beean positive

The two primary by-products from
the production procass, magnesium
sulphate and gypsum, may require
further dewnstream processing into
value added products for sale The
Company has identified possible
economic downstream processing
options and will engage expert
consultants during the Feasibility
Studies to prove the opportunities
for wallboard manufacturing from
gypsum and the production of high
value magnesium products from
magnesium suiphate




MINERAL TITLE RISK

There 1s often an element of uncertainty
about the validity of mineral titles as
they rely on the quality of State record
keeping over many years, even centuries
However, the Company’s projects are

all in countries with sophisticated land
registry systems so that the nsk of the
Caompany's mineral and exploration
nghts not being vahd 1s low

In the UK, mineral rights and surface
rights do not always go together and
the land registry system i1s focused on
surface rights rather than mineral rights
This introduces an additional level of
uncertainty and the Company makes
considerable efforts to confirm mineral
rights ownership before entenng mto
option and exploraticn agreements with
the mineral nghts owners Finance may
not be avallable if insufficient mineral
rights are held At YPP the Company
has entered into option agreements
with a large number of minerals nghts
owners under which the Company may
acquire the muneral ights and conduct
exploration and mining activities

The Company has five years to exercise
the options, extendable by three years
in certain circumstances, and thereafter
70 years to extract the minerals, and
the majonity are extendable by a further
70 years at the Company’s election

The existing contracted mineral nghts
position is over B5% of the YPP project
area Negotiations have commenced for
multiple mine surface and processing
sites with approval preparation currently
ongeing The Company 1s also able to
modify the ming plan duse to the large
size of the area of interest

PERMITTING RiISK

A large number of permits and licences
are required to bring a mining operation
successfully into production These
permits and licences vary country-
by-country and relate to conducting
exploration work, construction, traffic,
environmental, operations and a

host of other areas The nature of

the process means that permits and
licences can only be applhed for when
the development of a project reaches
the stage that the particular permit or
hcence 1s required it 1s not possible

to say that all such licences will be
obtained when they are needed, but the
Company and its specialist consultants
will continue to take all possible actions
to be successful In its applications

The significance of YPP from an
employment and econormic perspective
providas a compelling case in favour
of a positive permitting outcome The
Company has already received

a significant level of local, regional and
national support for the Project and
will continue ongoing engagement
with public, local and regional groups
to ensure full understanding of the
Project's benefits The Company does
have the ability to go to appeat If any
of the intial planning applications

are refused

There 1s also a nisk that access may
not be granted for key infrastructure
for the development of YPP, namely
the port, mine head and pipeline The
Company has a number of options
avallable for the mine head and port
and s in negotiations with relevant
counterparties Additionally, the
Company has been granted access to
the pipeline route, with negotiations to
commence and planning to run under
NID with compulsory powers

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

There 1s a nsk that the potash price
could fall to levels at which it would

not be aconomically viable to develop
any or all of the Company’s projects
The potash price has fluctuated over
recent years and can be expected to
do so over the coming years as well
While the Company does not expect
the potash price to decline to levels at
which its projects are not viable, there is
a nsk that this could occur either before
construction of the Project, or once it I1s
N operation

The Company's research team
continues to analyse the potash market
and current studies forecast continued
growth in world demand for potash
and a positive price outlook over the
medium-term SOP in particular has
large demand growth potential globally,
however the price does fluctuate and

15 affected by the economics of vanous
regions and supply and demand
dynamics There s a nsk that the
premium currently held by SOP over
MOP will be reduced as a result of YPP
volumes coming on market According
to the DSS, YPP I1s expected to be
towards the bottom of the potash cost
curve, and therefore potentially buffered
from penodic market fluctuations In
addition, as SOP 1s a premium product,
it1s expected at certan pricing levals
to replace some current MOP demand
As a result the Company views the
MOP price as an absolute mimmum for
the SOP price Where appropriate, the
Company will seek offtake agreements
with major customers to reduce market
and price nsk exposure

The Company will also be exposed to
pnce fluctuations for the by-products
magnesium sulphate and gypsum, and
the pnces for any further downstream
processed products There is the rnisk
that these prices and values may be
lower than forecast Under the recently
completed DSS, by-products compnsed
approximately 20% of total revenue,
meaning that if by-product prices

were to be 50% less than forecast, the
Project weuld remain economically
viable The Company will seek potential
strategic partnerships and/or offtake
agreements with existing industry
incumbents to de-nsk the by-product
revenue streams and secure the value of
the by-products
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LIQUIDITY RISK

There 1s a risk that the Company will
have insufficient funds to develop its
projects To successfully develop any
of iis projects the Company will need
to raise additional funds and thera i1s
no assurance that adequate funds wall
be available when they are required

to finance the Company's activities
However, the directors of the Company
have a reasonable expectation that
additional funds will be secured when
they are required The Company has a
strong Beard and management team
with extensive experience mn financing
large muiti-billion dollar projects

There I1s also the risk that capntal and
operating costs as outined in the YPP
DSS are significantly underestimated,
further increasing funding requirements
Completion of the Feasibility Studies
will reduce this uncertainty with cost
reduction and optimisation strategies
currently being investigated

The Company has been successful in
raising funds in the recent past and
intends to raise a combination of debt
and equity in the future to provide
funding for development and imitial
operations for YPP

CURRENCY RISK

At present the Company raises funds in
sterling and the considerable majority
of its expenditure s also in sterling
Howaever, the Company expects an
increasing proportion of its expenditura
to be incurred in Euros, US Dollars,
Canadian Dollars and Austrahan Dollars
during the period of project evaluation
and development Once in production
sales will largely be determined in US
Dollars, but priced in the European
market in Euros Operating costs will
be in a variety of currencies with the
largest component being enargy costs,
which are dniven predominantly by US
Dollar prncing The Company constantly
assesses Ifs currency exposure

and currenily holds funds In its key
currencies, roughly in proportion to its
expected exposure
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present therr annual
report and audited consolidated
accounts for the year ended 31 March
2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
REVIEW OF BUSINESS

The principal activity of the Group 1s to
acquire and develop properties with
exploration and mining potential Sinus
Mrnerals Plc I1s a globally diversified
company with properties overlying
recognised potash deposits held in
the United Kingdom, Australia and
North America

A review of the business of the Group

15 set out in the Chief Executive Officer's
report on pages 8 to 12 and the
Cperations report on pages 21 to 26

DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss of the Group for the year was
£60,104,000 {2011 £7,090,000) The
toss of the Company for the year was
£50,552,000 {2011 £6,704,000)

The Dirsctors do not recommend
a payment of a dividend for the year
{2011 £nil)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2012, the Directors
had the following interests either
directly or through related parties or
entities in which the Directors had

a beneficial interest In the ordinary
shares of the Company

NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE OF THE
SHARES HELD COMPANY HELD'

CN FRASER 114,000,750 85

GJ CATLOW 100,000,000 75

RJ SCRIMSHAW 32,388,888 24

PJE WOODS 4,199,916 03

THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY DURING THE YEAR WERE:

RJ SCRIMSHAW

Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed Non-Executive Chairman 21 November 2011

CN FRASER Managing Director and CEO
AM LINDSAY Finance Director and CFO Resigned 22 May 2012
CJ CATLOW Non-Executive Deputy Chairman Stepped down as Chairman 21 November 2011

SIR DAVID HIGGINS

Non-Executive Director

Appointed 15 March 2012

LORD HUTTON Non-Executive Director Appointed 18 January 2012

PROF MR MAINELLI Non-Executive Director

RO'D POULDEN Non-Executive Director Stepped down as Non-Executive Deputy Chairman 21
Novemnber 2011, then resigned 18 January 2012

PJE WOODS Non-Executive Director Appointed 18 April 2011

On 22 May 2012, JH Murray was appointed as Finance Director and CFO




Share options held by the Directors at the year-end were

NUMBER OF EXERCISE
GRANT DATE OPTIONS PRICE VESTING DATE EXPIRY DATE
{000S) £
CJ CATLOW 26 March 2010 25,000 00450 26 March 2010 25 March 2015
26 March 2010 25,000 00450 19 January 2011 25 March 2015
RJ SCRIMSHAW 16 December 2010 12,500 0 2500 16 December 2010 15 Dacember 2015
16 December 2010 12,500 0 3500 16 December 2010 15 December 2015
16 December 2010 12,500 0 4500 16 December 2010 15 December 2015
CN FRASER 17 January 2011 10,000 01870 17 January 2011 31 December 2013
AM LINDSAY 17 January 2011 4,000 01970 17 January 2012 31 December 2013
30 March 2011 1,747 02000 30 March 2012 29 March 2014
LORD HUTTON 30 January 2012 1,800 0 3000 30 January 2015 29 January 2022

On 3 May 2012, the Company granted 1,800,000 share options to Sir David Higgins, with an exercise pnce of 30p per share which vest on

3 May 2015 and expire on 2 May 2022

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying
indemmity provisions for the benefit

of Dwrectors under the letters of
appointment of each Director In
addition the Company has purchased
Directors' and Officers’ Liability
Insurance

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

Shareholdings as at 4 July 2012 of 3%
or more are as follows

PERCENTAGE
OF THE
COMPANY HELD

DIRECTORS 188

BARCLAY SHARE 56
NOMINEES LIMITED

TD DIRECT 49
INVESTING

NOMINEES EUROPE
LIMITED

STATE STREET 39
NOMINEES LIMITED

JIM NOMINEES 36
LIMITED

INVESTOR 33
NOMINEES LIMITED

HSDL NOMINEES 30
LIMITED

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Details of the Group's financial
instruments and 1ts policies with regard
to financial nsk management are given
In note 24 to the consolidated accounts

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES AND KEY
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Detanls of the principal nsks and
uncertainties and key performance
indicators relative to the Group are

set out in the Principal Fisks and
Uncertainties report on pages 33 to 38

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

Payment terms are normally agreed
with indmvidual suppliers at the time of
order placement and are honoured,
provided that goods and services

are supplied n accordance with the
contractual conditions

At the year end, the number of creditor
days of the Group was 15 (2011 30)

EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 3 May 2012, the Company
granted 1,800,000 share options with
an exercise price of 30p per share

to Sir David Higgins

On 4 May 2012, the Company received
notification that C&J Fraser Investments
Pty Limited, trustee of the Fraser

Family Trust of which CN Fraser1s a
beneficiary, purchased 500,000 ordinary
shares of O 25p each at an average
price of 18 48p per share, in the market

STATEMENT REGARDING
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
TO THE AUDITORS

In the case of each person who was
a Director at the time this report was
approved

* 50 far as that Director was aware,
there was no relevant audit information
of which the Group's audrtors were
unaware, and

that Director had taken all steps that
the Director ought to have taken as

a Dwector to make himselt or herself
aware of any relevant audit information
and to establish that the Group's
auditors were unaware of

that information

This information is given and should
be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

AUDITORS

A resolution in respect of the
re-appointment of Nexia Smith &
Willamson as the Group's auditors wiil
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

1 z

A

J Sembi
Company Secretary
Date 9 August 2012
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RUSSELL
SCRIMSHAW

NON-EXECUTIVE
CHAIRMAN (63}

Russell Scrimshaw was formerly
an Executive Director of Fortescue
Metals Group Ltd (FMG) and was

a member of the FMG Board from
2003 until 2011,

Previously Russell Scrimshaw was

a board member of Commonwealth
Properties Ltd, EDS Austraha,
Mobilesoft Ltd, Telecom New Zealand
Australia Pty Ltd, The Garvan Institute
Foundation and Athletics Australta and
has also held senior executive positions
within the Commonwealth Bank of
Austraha, Optus Communications Pty
Ltd, Alcatel, IBM and Amdahl USA

In addition he 1s an Associate Member
of the Australian Society of Certified
Practicing Accountants, an Adjunct
Professor of Mining Economics at
China Central South University in
Changsha, China and a non-executive
director of ASX-listed Cleveland Mining
Company Limited

Russell Scrimshaw was appointed
Chairman of Sinus Minerals in
Novembar 2011 and i1s a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the
Norminations Committee

CHRIS FRASER

MANAGING DIRECTOR
AND CEO (38)

Chns Fraser has approximately 16
years' finance experience in the
miming industry Dunng this time he
worked for Citigroup, Rothschild and
KPMG and has market leading expertise
in all aspects of the financing and
development of major mining projects

Having joined Citigroup in 2000,

Chns Fraser was appointed Head of
Metals and Mining Investment Banking
for Austraha in 2006 and Managug
Director in 2008

In these roles he led the bank to
become one of the leading investment
banking franchises in the miming
industry in Australia In particular he was
the lead adviser on the US$2 5 billion
intial development capital financing for
Fortescue Metals Group Ltd (FMG} He
has provided strategic advice to many
of the worid’s leading mining companies
ncluding BHP Biliton, Rio Tinto, WMC
Resources and Paladin Energy

In 2009 Chns Fraser founded Sigiriya
Capital, a specialist advisory and
investment house focused on the
resources sector in 2010 he founded
York Potash Lid to undertake the
exploration and development of the York
Potash Project and in January 2011 York
Potash was acquired by Sinus Minerals

Chns Fraser holds a Bachelor in
Commerce from the University of
Western Australia He s a qualfied
Chartered Accountant and a member

of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia In addition, he 15 a Senior
Associate of the Financial Services
Institute of Australia (FINSIA) and a
member of the Institute of Company
Directors in Austraka

Chris Fraser joined the Board in
January 2011

JASON MURRAY

FINANCE DIRECTOR
AND CFO (43)

Jason Murray previousty worked

at Bank of America Merrill Lynch
where he was Head of Capital
Markets 1n Australia Jason Murray
has over 20 years' finance expenence
having held senior positions at Citigroup
and JP Morgan and previously working

in vanous accounting and finance
sector roles In London, New York and
Moscow In the last decade, prior to him
joining the Company, he participated

in raising over US$250 billion for global
companies In the debt, equity and
hybnd capital markets in the USA,
Eurcpe and Agia

As well as being at the forefront of
capital markets globally, Jason Murray,
ts a mamber of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of England and Wales and
has a degree in Accounting Jason s
currently a member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors and the
British Institute of Directors

Jason Murray jotned the Board in
May 2012




CHRIS CATLOW

NON-EXECUTIVE DEPUTY
CHAIRMAN {51)

Chris Catlow 1s highly experienced
in the international resources
industry having worked on the
development and operations of ail
and gas, hard rock and sand mining
projects over a 25 year career.

He played a central role :in the formation
of lluka Resources Limited and most
recently was a senior executive and
CFO of the ASX-listed 1ron ore mining
company, Fortescue Metals Group Ltd
(FMG), having joined shortly after its
formation in 2003

Dunng ns seven years at FMG, intially
as s maugural Chief Financtal Officer
and then as its Investment and Business
Development Director, the company
financed and brought into production
1ts major iron ore miNiNg, processing
and port facility in Western Australia's
Pilbara region The development
established FMG as Australia’s third
largest iron ore producer behind Rio
Tinto and BHP Billiton

Chns Catlow has a BSc in Engineerning
Science from the University of Durham
in the UK and 1s a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in Austraha
He 1s currently Chairman of indo Mines
Limited and Allied Healthcare Group
Limited both listed on the ASX

Chris Catiow was appointed as a
director of the Company in April 2010
and as Deputy Chairman in November
2011 He s Chairman of the Audrt
Committee and 1s a member of the
Remuneration Commuttee

JOHN HUTTON

BARON HUTTON
OF FURNESS,
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (57)

Lord Hutton was a distingurshed
member of the Government for 13
years from 1997 to 2010, including
11 years as a Minister and four
years serving on the Cabinet.

He was appointed Chairman of the
Independent Public Service Pensions
Commission established by the current
Government in June 2010, which
delivered its final report in March 2011

Lord Hutton was a legal adviser to the
Confederation of Business Industry in
the late 1970s before becoming a senior
law iecturer at Newcastie Polytechnic

In 1992 he was elected to the Barrow
and Furness seat in Cumbrnia where he
remained as MP until he stood down at
the 2010 general election

Duning Lord Hutton’s vaned career

in Government, he served first as a
Permanent Parllamentary Secretary in
the Department of Trade and Industry
before becoming Leader of the House
of Commons and then mowving to the
Department of Health in 1998 where he
became Minister of State for Health in
1989, a position he held untid 2005

In 2005 Lord Hutton was bniefly
appointed Chancellor of the Duchy of
Lancaster and Minister of the Cabinet
Office before being made Secretary of
State for Work and Pensions In 2007
Lord Hutton was appointed Secretary
of State for Business, Enterprise and
Regulatory Reform In 2008 he became
Secretary of State for Defence untit he
stepped down from the Cabinet (n 2009
Following the general election in 2010
he was created a hfe peer as Baron
Hutton of Furness and now sits in the
House of Lords

Lord Hutton joined the Board in
January 2012 He s Chairman of the
Remuneration Commuittee

SIR DAVID HIGGINS

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (57)

Sir David, 18 currently the Chief
Executive of Network Rail, the
Authornity responsible for the UK's
rail network with an asset value of
£40 billion.

Previously he was Chief Executive of

the Olympic Delivery Authority ("ODA")
from March 2006 until January 2011
responsible for Venues, Infrastructure
and Spectator Transport for the London
2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games
with a budget of £8 billion Prior to

this, he was Chief Executive of English
Partnerships, the Government's National
Regeneration Agency, for three years

Earlier in Sir Dawid’s career, he was

the Managing Directer and Chief
Executive of Lend Lease Group, a global
property and infrastructure company

He graduated in Civil Engineering from
the University of Sydney and also holds
a Diploma from the Secunties Institute
of Australa He was knighted in 2011

Sir David joined the Board in
March 2012 He 1s a member of
the Audit Comruttee
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PROFESSOR
MICHAEL MAINELL!
FCCAFCSIFBCS,

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (53)

Michael Mainelli is Executive
Chairman of Z/Yen, the City of
London’s leading commercial
think-tank, where he has worked
since 1994 on strategy, technology,
finance and business development.
He started his career as a research
scientist and then spent seven years
as a partner in a leading accountancy
firm directing much of their consultancy
work In the UK and overseas

Michael's natural resources experience
dates back to 1979 where his early
research work led to him starting
companies In seismology, cartography
and ol & gas information for a Swiss
firm In the early 1980s he inttiated

and ran the Swiss firm’s multi-million
dollar oll Industry consortium (Shell,

BP, Chevron and Elf Aquitaine were the
primary partners plus 10 minor partners)
to digitise the world This culminated

in the development of Geodat and
Mundocart, ol ndustry standard sets
of cartographic data at scales from
150,000 to 11,000,000 and over 60
milon geographic features

Michael has worked for public, private
and not-for-profit companies, led
several privatisation projects, was Chief
Scientist of the DTI Foresight Challenge
award-winning Financial Laboratory
and served as Corporate Development
Director on the board of Europe’s

then largest R&D organisation - the
12,000 strong Defence Evaluation and
Research Agency of the UK's Ministry
of Defence

Michael 1Is Emenitus Professor of
Cormmerce at Gresham College and
was Bntish Computer Society Director
of the year in 2005

Michael Manell joined the Board
in May 2005 He s a member of the
Audit Commuttee and 1s Chairman
of the Nominations Committee

PETER WOODS

NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR (74)

Peter Woods 1s a consulting
geologist and engineer with
extensive experience in the potash
industry having worked for 13 years
as Chief Geologist at the Boulby
Potash Mine in North Yorkshire,
mmitially on its development and
start-up

Since leaving Boulby, Peter has
consultaed to a number of potash
companies and projects mcluding
Selection Trust on the Red Sea potash
project in Saudi Aratia and for two
years on the Environmental Protection
Scheme for the ASEAN potash project
In Thaitand In addition he has reviewed
potash projects in Spain and Russia
He has been advising York Potash

Ltd since its establishment and has
continued to do so following s
acquisition by Sinus in January 2011

In addition to his potash knowledge,
following a Masters Degree In
Environmental and Resource
Management 1ssues in 1988, Peter
Woods served as the Secretary of
State's Environmental Appointee on
the North York Moors National Park
Authonty from 1996 — 1999

Peter Woods also ran his own
environmental consultancy untl 2007
and has lived in North Yorkshire, on and
off, for over 40 years

Peter Woods jained the Board in
Aprif 2011




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The maintenance of effective corporate
governance remans a key priority

for the Board The Board recognises
the importance of sound corporate
governance and has adopted policies
and procedures which reflect the
principles of the UK Corporate
Governance Code that are consistent
with the Corporate Governance
Guidehnes for Smaller Quoted
Companies published by the Quoted
Companies Allance in September 2010,
of which the Company I1s a member

THE BOARD

The Board comprises two Executive
Directors and six Non-Executive
Directors providing an appropriate
balance of executive and non-executive
positions on the Board The directors
have a broad range of relevant strategic,
industry, financial, governance and cther
experience o enable the Company

to fulfil its objective of becoming one

of the world's most important potash
producers The particular experience
and skills of each director can be found
in their biographies on pages 40 to 42

A clear separation 1s maintained
between the responsibilities of the
Charrman and the Managing Director
and CEQ The Chairman i1s responsible
for leading the Board and the Managing
Director and CEQ 1s responsible for the
overall performance of the Company

The Chairman, Russell Scrimshaw s
non-executive The Deputy Chairman,
Chnis Catlow 1s also non-executive

The executive directors are Chris Fraser,
the Managing Director and CEQ and
Jason Murray, the Finance Director

and CFO The remaining four
Non-Executive Directors are Michael
Mainelll, Peter Woods, Lord Hutton

and Sr David Higgins

The Board considers Russel)
Scnmshaw, Michael Mainell, Lord
Hutton and Sir David Higgins to

be independent in character and
Independent in jJudgement and are
therefors independent directors
Although not all of these directors fully
satisfy the guidelines set out In the
UK Corporate Governance Code the
Board has considered the situation of
each director and the relevance of the
differences with the guidelines in the
context of the Company being histed
on AlM and has concluded on each
directors’ independence

If a potential conflict of interest exists

or anses for any director he I1s required
to declare such confiicts, which will be
recorded, and the Board will exercise
its authonty under the Company's
Articles of Association as approprate in
considenng such conflict

The Board meets regularly dunng the
year, at least every two months, to
discuss significant matters including
long term strategy, short-term
operational activihes and financial
performance The latest management
reports and accounts, including
vanances to budget, are presented at
each Board meeting

The Company's Articles of Association
require one third of the directors to retire
from office by rotation at every Annual
General Meeting Due to the recent
election of several directors, only Chris
Catlow will be retiring by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

For the duration of the year the
Company had an Audit Committee

and a Remuneration & Normnations
Committee, but subsequent to the year
end the Remuneration and Nominations
Committee was separated into two
commitiees a Remuneration Committee
and a Nominations Committee

All of the commuittees have formally
delegated responsibilities by way of
terms of reference

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee
are Chns Catlow, Michas! Mainelli

and Sir David Higgins Chris Catlow

1s Chairman of the committee The
committee consists entirely of Non-
Exscutive Directors and Michael
Mamnell and Sir David Higgins are
deemed to be independent The duties
of the committee include reviewing

the Company and Group financtal
statements, reviewing the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal controls

and nsk management systems and
ovarseeing the relationship with the
external auditor The committee

meets at least three times a year The
executive directors attend mestings by
invitation

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The members of the Remunsration
Commuittee are Lord Hutton, Russel!
Scrimshaw ang Chnis Catlow Lord
Hutton 1s Chairman of the comrmittee
The committee consists entirely of
Non-Executive Directors and Lord
Hutton 1s deemed to be independent
The duties of the commuittee include
reviewing the remuneration and service
contracts of executive directors and
reviewing the design of all share
incentive plans The committee

meets at least once a year Directors’
remuneration for the year 13 given in
note 7 to the consolidated accounts and
this disclosure forms part of this report

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

The members of the Nominations
Commuttee are Michael Maine!ll and
Russell Scrimshaw Michae! Mainelh
1s Chairman of the committee The
committee consists entirely of Non-
Executive Directors and Michael
Mainell 1s deemed to be independent
The duties of the committee include
evaluating the balance of skills,
knowledge and experience on the
Board before any appointments are
made The committee meets at least
once a year
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The performance of the Board,
committees and individual directors

are evaluated on a regular basis
Individual director evaluation mcludes
whether each director continues to
contribute effectively and demonstrates
comrmitment to therr role by attending
Board meetings

Further ad hoc meetings were held
during the year to approve certain
matters during the period leading to the
placing and on other matters

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for
the effectiveness of the Group's internal
controls in safeguarding the assets of
the Group The internal control systems
are designed to identify and manage
risks to ensure that the possibilities of
material misstatements or loss are kept
to 2 mmmmum

The processes used by the Board

to review the effectiveness of the
internal controls are through the

Audit Committee and the executive
management reporting to the Board on
a regular basis where business plans,
budgets and authonsation mits for

the approval of significant expenditure
ncluding investment are appraised and
agreed The Board also seeks to ensure
that there 1s a proper organisational
and management structure with clear
responsibilities and accountability

The Gompany has adopted and apples
a share dealing code on the dealing in
securities of the Company by directors
and employees, to ensure complhance
with Rule 21 of the AIM Rules

The Company has undertaken a

risk assessment to determine the
Company's exposure to bribery and
corruption risk In the countries, sectors
and markets in which it operates

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Attendance at board and committee meeting during the year was as follows

Following this assessment the Board
considered that the Company’s risk
exposure in these areas was low, but
implemented certain policies and
procedures {0 ensure compliance with
the requirements of the Bribery Act 2010
and that the Company's employaes
were surtably brniefed on these policies
and procedures The Company will
continue to monitor nsk regularly and to
determine the adequacy of the briefing
of employees to ensure compliancs

Due to the small size of the Group,

an internal audit function has not
been established The Board receives
sufficient assurance on nsk, control
and governance from other assurance
activities within the Group including
from regular management information
and the external auditors

SCHEDULED AUDIT REMUNERATION
& NOMINATION

BOARD COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
MEETINGS MEETINGS MEETINGS

RJ SCRIMSHAW 6/6 3/3

CN FRASER 6/6

AM LINDSAY 6/6

(RESIGNED 22 MAY 2012}

CJ CATLOW 6/6 2/2 3/3

SIR DAVID HIGGINS 11

(APPOINTED 15 MARCH 2012}

LORD HUTTON 2/2

(APPOINTED 18 JANUARY 2012}

PROF M MAINELLI 4/6 4/4 373

RO'D POULDEN 3/4

(RESIGNED 18 JANUARY 2012)

DCW STONLEY 5/5 2/2

(RESIGNED 15 MARCH 2012)

PJE WQOODS 6/6

(APPOINTED 18 APRIL 2012)




GOING CONCERN

The directors have reviewed the
financial performance of the Group
since 31 March 2012 and have
considered the Group's cash projections
for the 12 months from the date of
approval of these accounts Based on
these projections, the directors have
determined that the Group has sufficient
cash resources for the next 12 months
and consider It appropriate to draw up
the accounts on a going concern basis

KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The Group's approach to KPis 1s set out
on page 34

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

A raview of the Group's principal risks
and uncertainties (s set out on pages
34, 35 and 36

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board places importance on
effective communication with
shareholders and maintaing regular
dialogue with and gives briefings to
analysts and institubonal mvestors
Presentations are generally given by the
Executive Directors and on occasion by
the Charrman In particular a
presentation 1s made at the Annual
General Meeting Care 1s taken to
ensure that any price-sensitive
Information s released promptiy to all
shareholders through the Regulated
News Service, the circulation of such
releases to all shareholders who have
registered for inclusion on the
Cornpany’s circulation list and through
placing the release on the Company's
website The Notice of Annual General
Meeting, annual report and audited
accounts and intenm financial
statements in particular are 1ssued In
this manner The Notice of the Annual
General Meeting can be found on pages
81 t0 83

Rule 26 of the AIM Rules requires
companies to maintain a website
on which certain information should
be avaltable, free of charge This
information 1s available on the
Company's website at

WWW siriusminerals com

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behaif of the Board

J Sembi
Company Secretary
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The Directors are responsible for
preparning the Directors’ Repert and the
accounts In accordance with applicable
law and regulations

Company law reguires the Directors

to prepare accounts for each financial
year Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the Group and
Company accounts in accordance
with applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union and,
as regards the Company accounts, as
applied i accordance with provisions
of the Companies Act 2008 Under
company law the Directors must not
approve the accounts unltess they

are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the
profit or loss of the Group for that
period In preparing these accounts,
the Directors are required o

e Select sutable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently,

Make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

* State whether applicable IFRS, as
adopted by the European Union, have
been followed subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained in
the accounts, and

Prepare the accounts on the going
concern basis unless #t Is Inappropnate
to presume that the Group will continue
In business

The Directors are responsibie for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group's transactions and disciose
with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the
accounts comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and of the Group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregulantes

The Directors are responsible for

the maintenance and integnty of the
corporate and financial information
ncluded on the Company’s website
Legislation in the United Kmgdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SIRIUS MINERALS PLC

We have audited the accounts of Sinus Minerals Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which compnse the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements of
Financial Posttion, the Consokdated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Censolidated and Company Statements of
Cash Flows and the related notes 1 to 25 The financial reporting framework that has bean applied in their preparation is applicable
law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the company
accounts, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we ars required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility t6 anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 46, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for baing satisfied that they give a true and farr wew Qur responsibility 18 to audit and express
an cpinion on the accounts in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s} Ethical Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE ACCOUNTS

A descnption of the scope of an audt of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

OPINION ON ACCOUNTS

In our opirion

* the accounts give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affairs as at 31 March 2012 and of the
Group's loss for the year then ended,

« the Group accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

* the Company accounts have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as applied
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

* the accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the accounts are prepared 1s consistent
with the accounts




B —————————— S ———————————_——— T e S
MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Comparues Act 2006 requires us to report to you rf,
in our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not visited by us, or

* the company accounts are not in agreement with the accounting recards and returns, or
» certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Nova Swmifia W Wids .

Stephen Drew
Senior Statutory Auditor, for and on behalf of

.

Nexia Smith & Willlamson 25 Moorgate
Statutory Auditer, Chartered Accountants London
EC2R 8AY

Date 10 August 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Notes £000s £000s
Continuing operations
Revenue = -
Administraiive expenses {63,274) (7,713)
Summary of administrative expenses:
Impairment charge 4 {57,143) {732)
Acquisition costs 4 - (48)
Exploration costs expensed 4 - 497
Other administrative costs (6,131) {6.436)
Operating loss 5 {63,274) {7,.713)
Finance income 6 164 45
Loss before taxation {63,110) (7,668)
Taxation 8 3,006 578
Loss for the financlal year {60,104) (7,090)
Loss per share:
Basic and difuted 9 {(5-6)p {(10p




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 20m
£000s £000s
Loss for the year {60,104) {7,090)
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translating foreign operations 484 1,161
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 484 1,161
Total comprehensive loss for the year {59,620) (5,929)

Total comprehensive loss shown above Is fully attributable to equity shareholders of the parent in both years
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
ASSETS Notes £000s £000s
Non-current assets
Plant and eqguipment 10 253 36
Intangible assets 1 48,442 91,197
Total non-current assets 48,695 91,233
Current assets
Other recevables 13 1,703 307
Cash and cash egquivalents 15 54,271 21,010
Loans and recevables 18 1,500 -
Total current assets 57,474 21,317
TOTAL ASSETS 104,169 112,550
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 17 3,348 2,581
Share premium account 147,238 95,658
Share based payment reserve 18 7,691 6,343
Retained earnings (70,804) (10,700)
Foreign exchange reserve 7,217 6,733
Total equity 94,690 100,615
Non-current llabilities
Deferred tax hability 19 6,628 9,701
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 2,851 2,234
Total liabilities 9,479 11,935
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 104,169 112,550

The accounts were 1ssued and approved by the Board of Directors on 9 August 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

!

JH Murray
Finance Director and CFO




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2012

Share Equity
Share based Foreign share-

Share premium payments Retaned exchange holders’ Minornty Total

capital account resenve earmngs reserve funds  interests equity

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At 31 March 2010 1,658 47,959 1,575 {3,610} 5,672 53,154 - 53,154
Loss for the financial year - - - {7.000) - (7,090} - {7.090)
Foreign exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - - - 1,181 1,161 - 1,161
Total cornprehensive iIncome for the year - - - (7,090) 1,161 (5,929) - (5,929)
On acquisition - - - - - - - -
Share capital iIssued In the year 923 48,626 - - - 49,549 - 49,549
Share 1ssue costs - {927) - - - {927) - (927)
Share based payments - - 4,809 - - 4,809 - 4,809
Exercised options - - (41} - - 41) - (41)
At 31 March 2011 2,581 95,658 6,343  (10,700) 6,733 100,615 - 100,615
Loss for the financial year - - - (60,104) - (60,104) - {60,104)
Foreign exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations - - - - 434 484 - 484
Total comprahensive income for the year - - _ (60,104) 484 {59,620) - (59,620)
Share capital issued 1n the year 767 54,288 - - - 55,055 - 55,055
Share 1ssue costs - (2,708) - - - (2,708) - (2,708}
Share based payments - - 1,348 - - 1,348 - 1,348
At 31 March 2012 3,348 147,238 7,691 (70,804) 7.217 94,690 - 94,690

The share premium account Is used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the issue of shares
The share based payment reserve I1s used to record the share based payments made by the Group

Foreign exchange reserve records exchanges differences which anse on translation of foreign operations with a functional currency
other than Sterling
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012

2011

Notes £000s £000s

Cash outflow used In operating activities 22 {5,503} 822)
Cash flow from investing activitles

Purchase of intangible assets 11 {12,3886) {3,148)
Purchase of plant and equipment 10 {270} (37}
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - (372
Loan to thwrd party 16 {1,500) -
Net cash used in investing actlvities {14,1586) {3,557}
Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from tssue of shares 17 55,055 24,342
Share 1ssue costs 17 (2,708) 927
Finance mcome 164 45
Net cash generated from financing activities 52,611 23,460
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 32,852 (19,281)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 15 21,010 1,782
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 409 (53)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 15 54,271 21,010




COMPANY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
£000s £000s
Loss for the year (50,552) 6,704)

Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of tax -

Total comprehensive loss for the year {50,552) {6,704)
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2012

2012 2011
ASSETS Notes £0008 £000s
Non-current assets

Plant and equipment 10 76 1
Intangible assets 11 3 -
Investments in subsidianes i2 27,717 69,539
Total nen-current assets 27,796 69,540
Current assets

Other recevables 13 116 103
Loans o subsidianes 14 15,753 3,785
Cash and cash equivalents 15 53,828 20,871
Tota! current assets 69,697 24,759
TOTAL ASSETS 87,493 94,299
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

Share capital 17 3,348 2,581
Share premium account 147,238 95,658
Share based payment reserve 18 7,691 6,343
Retained earnings {62,210) (11,658)
Total equity 96,087 92,924
Current Habilitles

Loan from subsidiary company 20 1,104 1,104
Trade and other payables 21 322 271
Total liabilitles 1,426 1,375
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 97,493 94,299

The accounts wers 1ssued and approved by the Board of Directors on 9 August 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

S

JH Murray
Finance Director and CFQO




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2012

Share based Eguity
Share premum payments Retaned shareholders’
Share capital account reserve earmings funds
£000s £000s £000Qs £000s £000s

At 31 March 2010 1,658 47,959 1,575 (4,954} 46,238
Loss for the year and total comprehensive

Income - - {6,704} {6,704)
Share capital 1ssued in the year 923 48,626 - - 49,549
Share 1ssue costs - (927) - - 927)
Share based payment reserve - - 4,809 - 4,809
Exercised options - - 41) - {41)
At 31 March 2011 2,581 95,658 6,343 (11,658) 92,924
Loss for the year and total comprehensive

ncome - - - (50,552) (50,552)
Share capital issued in the year 767 54,288 - - 55,055
Share 1ssue costs - {2,708} - - (2,708)
Share based payment reserve - - 1,348 - 1,348
At 31 March 2012 3,348 147,238 7,691 (62,210) 96,067

The share premium account I1s used to record the excess proceeds over nominal value on the 1ssue of shares

The share based payment reserve (s used to record the share based payments made by the Company
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Notes £000s £000s

Cash outflow used in operating activities 22 (1,934) (1,200)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets 11 4) -
Purchase of plant and equipment 10 an (1)
Investment in subsidiary - (373
Loans to subsidiary companies 14 (17,511) (2,571)
Net cash used in investing activities (17,602) (2,945}
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from 1ssue of shares 17 55,055 24,342
Share 1ssue costs 17 {2,708) {927}
Loan from subsidiary company 20 - 1,104
Finance incoms 146 42
Neot cash generated from financing activities 52,493 24,561
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 32,857 20,416
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15 20,871 455

Cash and cash equlvalents at end of the year 15 53,828 20,871




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The annual accounts of Sinus Minerals Plc {“the Company™) and its subsicianes (“the Group”} have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as adopted by the Eurcpean Union (“EU™) and appled in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

IFRS 1s subject to amendment and interpretation by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International
Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC™ and there is an ongoing process of review and endorsement by
the European Commission The accounts have been prepared on the basis of the recognition and measurement principles of IFRS
that were applicable at 31 March 2012

The accounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention The principal accounting policies set out below have been
consistently applied to all penods presented
GOING CONCERN

The Group has incurred trading losses during the year ended 31 March 2012 The Directors have reviewed the financial performance
of the Group since 31 March 2012 and have considered the Group's cash projections for the 12 months from the date of approval
of these accounts Based on these projections, the Directors have determined that the Group has sufficient cash resources for the
next 12 months and consider it appropnate to draw up the accounts on a going concern basts The accounts do not include any
adjustments that would result if the going concern assumption was no longer deemed appropnate

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS IN “ISSUE” BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

Al the date of authonisation of these consolidated accounts, the LASB and IFRIC have 1ssued standards and interpretations which
are effective for annual accounting penods beginning on or after the stated effective date Whilst these standards and mnterpretations
are not effective for and have not been applied in the preparation of these consolidated accounts, the following may have a matenz|
impact geing forward

¢ IFRS 7 {(Amendment) ‘Disclosures - Transfer of Financial Assets' (effective from 1 July 201 1),

* |AS 12 (Amendment) ‘Deferred Tax Recovery of Underiying Assets’ (effective from 1 January 2012),

* IAS 1 (Amendment) ‘Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive Income’ (effective from 1 July 2012),

» IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ {effective from 1 January 2013),

* IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements' (effective from 1 January 2013),

* IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective from 1 January 2013},

* |AS 27 '‘Separate Financial Statements’ (effective from 1 January 2013},

* |AS 28 'Investments i Associates and Joint Ventures' (effective from 1 January 2013),

* IFRS 13 'Far Value Measurement’ (effective from 1 January 2013),

* |AS 19 (Amendment} ‘Employee Benefits' (effective from 1 January 2013},

* IFRS 7 {Amendment) (effective from 1 January 2013),

+ [FRS 1 {Amendment} (effective from 1 January 2013),

IAS 32 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments Presentation’ (effective from 1 January 2014),

* IFAS 9 'Financial Instruments’ (effective from 1 January 2015),

* IFRIC 20 *Stnpping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine’ (effective from 1 January 2013)

NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE GROUP
The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRSs as of 1 Apn! 2011

* |AS 24 (Revised) 'Related Party Transactions' (effective from 1 January 2011),
The revisions to this standard are relevant for government-related secunties The definition of a related party has been amended in
respeci of relationships nvolving significant influence and the related party disclosures normally required by state-controlled entities
ware reduced The Group adopted this revised standard from 1 April 2011 The adoption of this standard did not have a matenal
impact on the Group
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BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group’s consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries) prepared to 31 March each year Control 1s achieved where the Company has power to govern the financial and
operating pohcies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its actvities

The results of the subsidianes acquired or disposed of dunng the year are included In the consolidated income statement from the
effective date of acquisiion or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropnate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the accounts of subsichanes to bnng the accounting policies used into ine with those
used by the Group

All intra-group transactions and balances and any unrealised gains and losses ansing from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated accounts

As a consolidated income statement 1s published, a separate income statement for the parent Company 1s omitted from the Group
accounts by virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The loss for the Company for the year was £50,552,000 (2011
£6,704,000)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

On acquisttion, the assets and lhabilittes and contingent habilities of subsidiaries are measured at therr far values at the date of
acquisition Any excess of cost of acquisition over the far value of iIdentifiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwill Any
deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the far values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i e discount on acquisition) 1s credited
to the income statement in the penod of acquisition Goodwill ansing on consalidation 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for
imparment at least annually Any imparment i1s recogrised immediately in the ncome statement and 1s not subsequently reversed

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation less any recognised mpairment losses Cost iIncludes expendriture that 1s
directly attnbutable to the acquisition or construction of these tems Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s camying amount
only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Group and the costs can be measured
reliably All other costs, including reparrs and mantenance costs are charged to the income statement in the penod in which they are
incurred Depreciation 1s provided on all tangible fixed assets and i1s calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate cost, other than
assets in the course of construction, over the estimated useful lives, as follows

Computer equipment 33 3% per annum

Fixtures & furniture 33 3% per annum

Plant & machinery 33 3% per annum

Motor vehicles 20% per annum

Leasshold improvements Over the penod of the lease

SOFTWARE !

Computer software is camed at cost less accumulated amortisation and mparments, and 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over
3 years
EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Costs ansing from exploration and evaluation activities are accumulated separately for each area of interest and only caprtalised
where such costs are expected to be recouped through successfiil development, or through sale, or where exploration and
evaluation activities have not, at the reporting date, reached a stage to allow a reasonable assessment regarding the existence of
economically recoverable reserves

Expenditure capitalised comprises direct costs that have a specific connection with a particular area of interest

Capitalised expenditure in respect of areas of interest 1s wntten off In the Income staterment when the above cntena do not apply or
when the directors assess that the carrying value may exceed the recoverable amount

Capitalised costs in respect of an area of interest that 1s abandoned are wntten off In the penod in which the decision to abandon 1s made

Once production commences, capritalsed expenditure in respect of an area of interest 1s amortised on a unit of procuction basis by
reference to the reserves of that area of interest




IMPAIRMENT

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
18 any indication that those assets have suffered an impasrment loss If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
18 estimated in order to deterrmina the extent of the impairment loss {f any) Where the asset dees not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverabla amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount I1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to ther present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the nsks specific to the asset, for which the estimates of future cash flow have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its carmyang amount, the carying

amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount An Impairment 10ss$ 1s recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is camed at a re-valued amount, in which case the impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation
decrease

Where an imparrment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) 1s ncreased to the revised
estimate of ifs recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined had no imparrment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in pnor penods A reversal of the
imparment l0ss I1s recognised In the Income staterment immediately

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The reporting and functional currency of the Group 1s Stering  Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are translated into sterling
at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and habilities denominated in
foreign currency are translated at the rate ruling at that date All exchange differences are dealt with in the Income statement

On consclidation, the assets and Irabilties of foreign operations which have a functional currency other than Sterling are transiated into
Sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of these subsidiary undertakings are
translated at average rates applicable in the penod All resuting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equrly

The foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date and the average rates for the year that were used in prepanng the consolidatad
accounts were

Balance sheet date Average rate
Australian Dollars to Sterling 154 (2011 1 56) 15632011 165)
US Dollars to Sterling 1 60 (2011 1 60) 160(2011 1565)
Canadian Dollars to Steriing 159 (2011 1 56) 159 (2011 1 58)

INVESTMENTS
Investments by the Company In respect of its subsidianes are held at cost less any provision for impairment when required

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
as requrred by IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ The chief operating decision-maker, who 1s responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are consistent with the accounting policies of the Group as a whole Segment
loss represents the loss incurred by each segment without allocation of foreign exchange gains or losses, nvestment income, Interest
payable and tax This 1s the measure of loss that 1s reported to the Board of Directors for the purpose of resource allocation and the
assessment of segment performance

When assessing segment performance and considenng the allocation of resources, the Board of Directors review information about
segment assets and llabilibes For this purpose, all assets and liabilities are allocated to reportable segments with the exception of the
assets and labilities in relation to the Group’s head offices

LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Loans and other recevables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost lass provision for
imparrment Prowision for impaiment «s established when there 1s objective evidence that the Greup will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the onginal terms of the loan or receivable The amount of the iImpairmant 1s the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effactive interest rate
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents include vanous instant access deposits and short term fixed deposits

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables are nttially measured at far value, and subseguently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method

TAXATION

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s prowidad in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
labilities and therr carrying amounts in the consolidated accounts However, if the deferred tax anses from the intial recognition of
an asset or hability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects nerther accounting,
nor taxable profit or loss, 1t1s not accounted for Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted (or
substantially enacted) by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised or the
deferred tax liabtty 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the
temporary differences can be utihsed

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument 15 any contract that ewdences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its kabiliies
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group ars recorded at the proceeds received, net of any direct 1Issue costs

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Group has appiied the requirements of IFRS 2 'Share Based Payments'

The Group 1ssues equity settled share based payments to certain directors, senior managers and consultants Equity settled share based
payments are measured at far value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting conditions} at the date of grant The farr value
determined at the grant date of the equity settled share basad payments 1s expensed on a straight tne basts over the vesting penod,
based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting condrtions
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Provision 1s made in the financial statements for all employee benefits Liabiities for wages and salanes including non-monetary
benefits and annual leave obliged to be settled within twelve months of the balance sheet date, are recogrised within accruals The
Group 1ssues equity settled share based payments to certain directors, semicr managers and consultants Pension contrbutions are
made in respect of the Group'’s employees based in Austraha and are charged to the income statement in the penod te which the
contributions relate

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
Research and development expenditure 15 expensed

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The critical accounting estimates and judgements made by the Group regarding the future or other key sources of estimation,
uncertainty and judgement that may have a significant nsk of gving nse to a matenal adjustment to the carrying values of assets and
liabiities within the next financial year are

IMPAIRMENT OF EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there 15 any indication that an asset may be mpaired Where an indication of
impairment exists, the Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds ts
recoverable amount the asset 1s considered imparred and 15 wntten down to 1ts recoverable amount

Recoverable amount 15 the greater of far value less costs to sell and value In use It s determined for an individual asset unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely ndependent of those from other assets or groups of assets, n which case, the
recoverable amount Is determined for the cash-generating urut to which the asset belongs

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal experience and other factors, Including expectations
of future events that are belreved to be reasonable under the circumstances




GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy The recoverable
amounts of cash-generated units will be determined based on value-in-use calculations These calculations will require the use of
estimates (see note 11)

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

In determining the fair value of equity settled share based payments and the related charge to the income statement, the Group
makes assumptions about future events and market conditions In particular, judgement must be made as to the likely number

of shares that will vest and the far value of each award granted The farr value 1s determined using a valuation modal which is
dependent on further estimates, including the Group's future dvdend policy, the timing with which options wilfl be exercised and the
future volatiity in the price of similar potash compamies Such assumptions are based on publicly avalable information and reflect
market expectations and adwice taken from qualified personnel Different assumptions about these factors to those made by the
Group could matenally affect the reported value of share based payments

3 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS

Management has determined the operating segments by considenng the business from both a geographic and product perspective
For management purpases, the Group s currently organised into two operating divisions resource evaluation and explostation and

environmental solutions These divisions are the business segments for which the Group reperts its segment information internally to
the Board of Directors The Group's operations are predominantly in the United Kingdom, the United States of Amenca and Austraha

UK Uniteg States of Amenca Australia
Resource Resource Resource
evaluaton and evaluaton and Environmental  evahuation and  Emaronmental Consolidation
exploration exploration solutions exploration solutions Unallocated adjustments Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Year ended 31 March
2012
Operating loss (672) 5,175} {181) {52,545) {293} {51,772) 47,364 (63,274)
Finance costs - - - - - - - -
Finance income 9 4 - - 2 149 - 164
Loss before taxation {663} (5.171) {181) (52,545) {291) (51,623) 47,364 (63,110)
Taxaton 512 - - 2,484 - - - 3,006
Loss for the year from
continuing operations {151) 5,171) {181} {50,051) {291) (51,623} 47,364 (60,104}
Total assets 46,908 969 - 3,335 29 70,127 (17,199} 104,169
Total labilities (22,038 {5,180) (182} {1,687) {162} {(2,962) 22,742 (9,479)
Net assets 24,870 4,211) (182) 1,638 (133} 67,165 5,543 94,690
Caprtal expenditure 11,526 770 - 258 - 102 - 12,656
Depreciation and amortisation 38 - - - - 21 - 59
Impairment charge - 4,945 178 51,770 250 - - 57,143

Acquisition costs - - - - - - - -
Exploration expensed - - - - - - - -
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UK United States of Amenca Australa
Resource Resource Rasource
evaluaton and  evaluationand Ermaronmental  evaluationand  Environmental
axploration exploration solutions axploration solstions Unallocated  Consolidation Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s  adjustments £000s
Year ended 31 March
2011
Operating loss (301) {406} (18) (124) @) (6,8860) - (7,713}
Finance costs - - - - - - - -
Finance income - - - 3 - 42 - 45
Loss before taxation (301) {4086) {18) (121) 4) (6,818) - (7,668)
Taxation - - - 529 49 - - 578
{Loss)/profit for the
year from continuing
operations (301) (406) (i8) 408 45 (6.818) - (7,090)
Total assets 32,406 5,067 177 54,832 307 24,805 (5,044) 112,550
Total labilties (7,385) 4,147) (180) {3,573) (153) (1,541) 5044 (11,935)
Net assets 25,021 920 (3) 51,259 154 23,264 - 100,615
Capital expenditure 25,652 2,882 - 166 - a7 - 28,737
Depreciation and
amortisation - - - 1 - 1 - 2
Imparrment charge - - - - - 732 - 732
Acqgussition costs - - - - - 48 - 48
Exploration expensed 365 132 - - - - - 497

4 SUMMARY OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group made impairment charges of £16,601,000 in Auspotash Corporation, £171,000 in Queensland Potash Pty Limited,
£20,475,000 in Adavale Holdings Pty Limited, £14,523,000 in Derby Salts Pty Limited, £173,000 i Bicarb Sequestration Pty
Limited, £77.000 1n CO, Energy Storage Pty Limited, £4,845,000 in Dakota Salts LLC and £178,000 in CO, Energy Storage Limited
The Focus of the Company 1s the Flagship York Potash Project and consistent with this focus, the Company has written down

the valua of the remainder of the portfolio With each impairment, the intangible exploration assets and any goodwill held by the
relevant companies were impaired The total expense recognised within the Income statement in relabon to impairment charges is
£57,143,000 (2011 £732,000) (see note 11)

The Company made impairment charges in respect of its investments in, and loans recewvable by, Auspotash Corporation,
Queensland Potash Pty Limited, Adavale Holdings Pty Limrted. Derby Salts Pty Limited, Bicarb Sequestration Pty Limited, CO,
Energy Storage Pty Limited, Dakota Salts LLC and CO, Energy Storage Limited {see notes 12 and 14)




5 OPERATING LOSS IS STATED AFTER CHARGING:

2012 2011
£000s £000s

Auditors’” remuneration
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audtt of the Group's consolidated accounts
(including £19,000 in respect of the Company (2011 £18,000)) 42 38
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and ther associates for other services to the Group
~The audit of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legisiation 5 5
= Accrued for tax compliance 4 4
Imparment 57,143 3
Depreciation 54 2
Research and development 25 28
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 22 (37)

6 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

2012 2011
£000s £000s
Bank interest receved 184 45

7 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS {INCLUDING DIRECTORS}

2012 2011
Number Number
Average number of staff (including Directors) 21 7
Staff costs (ncluding Directors) during the year were
2012 2011
£000s £000s
Wages and salanes 1,725 324
Bonuses 243 -
Social Security 137 5
Pension 39 2
Other benefits 28 2
2,172 333
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Directors remuneration dunng the year was

Wages and Pension Compensation
Salaries Boruses comnbytions  for loss of office  Other benefits Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £00Gs £000s
Year ended 31 March 2012

RJ Scrimshaw 34 - - - - 34
CN Fraser 260 215) - - 5 361
AM Lindsay 165 - - - 5 170
CJ Catlow 28 . . . - 28
Sir David Higgins 1 - - - - 1
Lord Hutton 5 - - - - 5
Prof MR Mainell 25 - - - - 25
RO'D Poulden 20 - - 17 - a7
DCW Stonley 25 - - - - 25
PJE Woods 25 - - - - 25
588 96 - 17 10 711

There were no contributions to pension schames (2011 £nil)

givenn note 18

Details of the share options 1ssued to the Directors durng the vear are

Wages and Pension Compensation

Salarias Bonuses contnbutions  for loss of offica Other benefits Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Yoar ended 31 March 2011
RJ Scrimshaw 3 - - _ - 3
CN Fraser 54 - - - ] 55
AM Lindsay 41 - - - 1 42
CJ Catlow 29 - - - - 29
JC Harmson 23 - - 30 - 53
Prof MR Mainell 10 - - - - 10
RO'D Poulden B0 - - - _ 60
DCW Stonley 10 - - - - 10
230 - - 30 2 262

Key management are those persons having authonty and responsibility for planning, controling and directing the actvities of the
Group The Drectors are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group

Key management personnel received the fallowing compensation dunng the year

2012 2011
£000s £000s
Short-term employes benefits including social secunty costs 750 267
Share based payments 425 1,368
1,175 1,635
Share options held by the Directors at the year-end were
Exarcise
Nurnper of options prce
Grant date (000s) £ Vesting date Expury date
CJ Catlow 26 March 2010 25,000 00450 26 March 2010 25 March 2015
26 March 2010 25,000 00450 19 January 2011 25 March 2015
RJ Scamshaw 16 December 2010 12,500 02500 16 December 2010 15 December 2015
16 December 2010 12,500 0 3500 16 December 2010 15 December 2015
16 December 2010 12,500 04500 16 December 2010 15 December 2015
CN Fraser 17 January 2011 10,000 01970 17 January 2011 31 December 2013
AM Lindsay 17 January 2011 4,000 01970 17 January 2012 31 December 2013
30 March 2011 1,747 0 2000 30 March 2012 29 March 2014
Lord Hutton 30 January 2012 1,800 03000 30 January 2015 29 January 2022




8 TAXATION
2012 2011
£000s £000s
Caorporation tax
Current year - {49)
Deferred tax
Effect of change in tax rate (775} (529
Release of deferred tax on impamment {2,231) -
{3,008) (578)
The credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows
2012 2011
£000s £000s
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation {63,110) (7,668}
Loss on ordinary activities muitipied by the standard rate of corporation taxation in the UK of
26% (2011 28%) {16,408) {2,147)
Taxation effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 15,282 1,722
Effect of change in tax rate {(775) (529
Release of deferred tax on imparment {2,231) -
Trading losses utiised {43) (13)
Trading losses not uthsed 1,183 438
Research and developrment - {48}
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (14)
Tax credit for the year {3,008) (578)

The Group has unused tax losses of £8,146,000 {2011 £4,535,000) The related deferred tax asset has not been recognised in
the accounts due to the uncertainty surrounding its recoverability The deferred tax asset can be recovered against sutable future
trading profits

9 LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share 15 calculated by dividing the earnings attnbutable to ordinary sharsholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year

Given the Group's reported loss for the year, share options are not taken into account when determining the weighted average
number of ordinary shares n 1ssue dunng the year and therefore the basic and diluted sarmings per share are the same

2012 2011
£000s £000s
Loss for the purposes of basic earmings per share being net loss attnbutable to equity
sharsholders of the parent {60,104) (7,090)
Loss for the purpose of diuted earnings per share {60,104) (7,090)
2012 2011
Number Number
o000 0003
Number of shares
Woeighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings
per share 1,082,989 733,827

If the Company’s share options were taken into consideration in respect of the Company's weighted average nurmber of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share, it would be as follows

2012 2011
Number Number
0003 0003
Nurnber of shares
Waighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 1,147,453 790,939

Basic and diluted loss per share {5.6)p {1 0jp




SIRIUS MINERALS PLC > ANNUAL REPORT 2012 » FINANCIALS > FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e
10 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer Fixtures & Plant & Motor Leasehold

equipment furniture machingry vehicles Improverments Total
Group £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 7 - - - - 7
Additions 12 25 - - - 37
At 31 March 2011 19 25 - - - 44
Additions 47 20 86 58 59 270
At 31 March 2012 66 45 86 58 59 314
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2010 6 - - - - 6
Charge for the year 1 1 - - - 2
At 31 March 2011 7 1 - - - 8
Charge for year 11 7 18 8 9 53
At 31 March 2012 18 8 18 8 9 61
Net book value
At 31 March 2012 48 37 68 50 50 253
At 31 March 2011 12 24 - - - 36

Computer Leasehold
equipmertt improvements Total

Company £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 April 2010 5 - 5
Additions 1 B} 1
At 31 March 2011 6 - 6
Additions 28 59 87
At 31 March 2012 34 59 a3

Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2010
Chargs for the year

«»
[
9}

At 31 March 2011 5 - 5
Charge for year 3 12
At 31 March 2012 8 17
Net book value

At 31 March 2012 28 50 76
At 31 March 2011 1 - 1




11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Exploration

costs and rights Goodwill Software Total
Group £000s FDOCs £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 52,446 2,528 - 54,974
Additions 3,148 - - 3,148
Additions acquired on acquistion of subsidrary 25,5652 6,644 - 32,196
Foreign exchange movement 1,802 (38) - 1,664
As at 31 March 2011 82,748 9,134 - 91,882
Additions 12,338 - 48 12,386
Additions acquired on acquisition of subsidiary - - - -
Forexgn exchange movement 63 {55) - 8
As at 31 March 2012 95,149 9,079 48 104,276
Provision for impairment/amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2010 (682) - - {682)
Impairment 3 - - 3)
At 31 March 2011 {685) - - {685)
Impairment/amortisation (54,707) {2,436) {6) (57,149)
At 31 March 2012 {55,392) {2,436) (6) (57.,834)
Net book value
31 March 2012 39,757 6,643 42 46,442
31 March 2011 82,063 9,134 - 91,197

GOODWILL

The goodwill acquired in January 2011 as part of the business combination relating to York Potash Limited has been allocated to
the cash generating unit {CGU) of resource evaluation and exploitation in the geographical location of the UK, which i1s expected to
benefit from the business combination

The recoverable amount of the goodwill on the acquisition of York Potash Limited has been assessed by reference to value in use
The valuation 1s based on cash flow projections that incorporate best estimates of selling prices, production rates, future capital
expenditure and production costs The growth rate of 2% was incorporated into the discount rate

The cash flow projections are based on long term plans covening the expected life of the operation The expected life Is more than
25 years The valuations are particularly sensitive to changes in assumptions about selling prices, volumes of production and
operating costs Long term average selling pnces are forecast taking account of market data in respect of potash and management’s
current expectations Forecasts of volumes of production and operating costs are based on management's current expectations

Discount rates represent an estmate of the rate the market would apply having regard to the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted A discount rate of 8 per cent, which 1s
considered to be appropnate for a project of this nature and size, has been applied to the pre-tax cash flows

No reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which York Potash Limited's recoverable amount i1s based would cause its
value io fall short of its carnying amount as at 31 March 2012

IMPAIRMENT

The impairment charge to exploration costs and nghts of £54,707,000 relates to Auspotash Corporation, Queensland Potash Pty
Limited, Adavale Holdings Pty Limited, Derby Salts Pty Limited, Bicarb Sequestration Pty Limited, CO,, Energy Storage Pty Limited,
Dakota Salts LLC and CO, Energy Storage Limited (see note 4) The Impairment charge to goodwill of £2,436,000 relates to
Auspotash Corporation Auspotash Corporation, Quesnsland Potash Pty Umited, Derby Salts Pty Limited, Bicarb Sequestration Pty
Limited, CO, Energy Storage Pty Limited and CO, Energy Storage Lirmited were fully impared Adavale Holdings Pty Limited and
Dakota Salts LLC were impaired by reference to fair value on an open market basis (see note 4)
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11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Exploration

costa and rights Software Total
Company £000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011 660 - 660
Additions - 4
At 31 March 2012 660 664
Provigion for impairment/amortisation
At 1 April 2010 and 31 March 2011 (660) - {660)
Amortisation - (1) (1)
At 31 March 2012 (660) {1 {661)
Net book value
31 March 2012 - 3 3

31 March 2011

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

2012 2011
Company £000s £000s
At 1 Apri 2011 69,539 44 217
Additions - 25,322
Impairment (41,822) -
At 31 March 2012 27,7117 69,539

The mpairrment charge of £41,822,000 relates to the Company’s investments in Auspotash Corporation, Adavale Holdings Pty
Limited, Derby Saits Pty Limited, Bicarb Sequestration Pty Limited, CO, Energy Storage Pty Limited, Dakota Salts LLC and CO,

Energy Storage Limited (see note 4)

At the year-end date, the Company’s investments in subsidianies were

Percentage of ordinary

share capdtal heid by
Name Country of incorporation Actmty the Company
York Potash Limited UK Resource exploration 100%
Sinus Exploration Limted UK Dormant 100%
Sinus Resources Limited UK Domant 100%
Sinus Potash Limited UK Dormmant 100%
Auspotash Corporation ** Canada Holding company 100%
Qusensland Potash Pty Limited ~ Austrahia Resource exploration “ 100%
Adavale Holdings Pty Limited ** Australia Resource exploration 100%
Sinus Minerals (Australia) Pty Lmited Australa Management services company 100%
Derby Salts Pty Limited ** Australia Resource exploration 100%
Bicarb Sequestration Pty bimrted ** Australia Environmental solutions 100%
CO, Energy Storage Pty Limited ** Australia Emaronmental solutions 100%
Dakota Salts LLC USA Resource exploration 100%
CO, Energy Storage Limited USA Envircnmental solutions 100%

“This investment «s held indirectly by the Company through Auspotash Corporation

* These investments were imparad dunng the year




e ]
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES

2012 201
£0003 £000s
Group
Other debtors 953 260
Prepayments 750 47
1,703 307
Company
Other debtors 56 56
Prepayments 60 47
116 103

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of other recevables approximates to their far value
No bad and doubtful debt charges have been recognised by the Group in the income statement dunng the year (2011 £nil)

At 31 March 2012, no receivables were etther impaired (2011 €nil) or past due but not mpaired (2011 €nid)

e ——————
14 LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES

2012 2011

Company £000s £000s
York Potash Limited 13,801 454
Dakota Salts LLC 400 2,666
Sinus Minerals {Australia) Pty Limited 1,852 45
Adavale Holdings Pty Limited - 288
Queensland Potash Pty Limited - 9
Derby Salts Pty Limited - 13
Bicarb Sequestration Pty Limited - 114
CQ, Energy Storage Pty Limited - 19
CO, Energy Storage Limited - 177
15,753 3,785

The loans to subsidianes are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand
The Drrectors consider that the carrying arnount of these loans approximate ther fair value

At 31 March 2012, the loans to Queensland Potash Pty Uimited, Adavale Holdings Pty Limited, Derby Salts Pty Limited, Bicarb
Sequestration Pty Limited, CO, Energy Storage Pty Limited, Dakota Satts LLC and CO, Energy Storage Limited were impaired
{2011 Enil) The total impawrment charge 1s £5,544,000 No loans were past due but not impaired (2011 £nl)
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2012 2011
£000n £000s
Group
Cash at bank 54,271 21,010
Cash and cash equivalents 2012 20mM
£000s £000s
Company
Cash at bank 53,828 20,871
The Directors consider that the camying amount of these assets approximates to therr far value
The credit nsk on hquid funds 1s imited because the counter-parties are banks with high credit ratings
The Group and Company's cash at bank s held in the following currencies
2012 201
£000n £000s
Group
Sterling 63,223 18,855
US Dollars 312 1,074
Canadan Dollars 25 32
Australian Dollars 71 1,049
54,271 21,010
2012 2011
£000a £000s
Company
Sterling 53,086 18,851
US Dollars 256 1,045
Australian Dollars 486 975
53,828 20,871

16 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

2012 2011
£000s £000s

Group

Loan to third party 1,500 -

During the year a loan for £1,500,000 was 1ssued to a third party The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 6% per annum and I1s
payable monthly in arrears by the borrower £750,000 of the ioan 1s repayable in equal monthly instalments ending July 2013 and the
reramning £750,000 of the loan 1s repayable in August 2013




17 SHARE CAPITAL

2012 2011
£000s £000s

Allotted and called up

1,339,033,000 {2011 1,032,578,000) ordinary shares of 0 25p sach 3,348 2,581

On 23 November 2011 the Company I1ssued 900,000 new ordinary shares of 0 25p each at a pnce of 6p per share, reahsing
£55,000, following the exercise of share options

On 31 January 2012 the Company I1ssued 305,555,555 new ordinary shares of 0 25p each at a price of 18p per share, realising
£55,000,000, in a share placing Costs in relation to the share placing were £2,708,000

18 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Dunng the year, the movement in share options was as follows

Weaighted

Average

Number of axercise

options price

000s £
At 31 March 2011 130,343 01706
Issued dunng the year 13,175 01931
At 31 March 2012 143,518 0.1727
Exercisable at 31 March 2012 130,343 01706

Waighted

Average

Number of exercise

options pnca

000s [

At 31 March 2010 57,981 00271
Issued dunng the year 74,793 0 2560
Exercised during the year (931) 00450
Forferted dunng the year {1,500) 00450
At 31 March 2011 130,343 0.1706

Exercisable at 3t March 2011 113,550 0 1664
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Details of the options 1ssued during the year are as follows

Reciptent

Grant date

Share price at date of grant (£)
Exercise price (£)

Volatility rate

Expected Ife (vears)

Risk free rate

Dividend yield

Vesting date

Number of options (000s)

Far value of options at date of grant (2000s)

Recipient

Grant date

Share price at date of grant (£)
Exercise pnce (£)

Volatlity rate

Expected Ife {years)

Risk free rate

Dmdend yield

Vesting date

Number of options {000s)

Farr value of options at date of grant (£000s)

Recipient

Grant date

Share price at date of grant (£)
Exercise price (£)

Volatility rate

Expected ife {years)

Risk free rate

Dmdend yield

Vesting date

Number of options {C00s)

Far vaiue of options at date of grant {£000s)

Recipient

Grant date

Share price at date of grant (£)
Exercise price {£)

Volatiity rate

Expected Iife (years)

Risk free rate

Dradend yield

Vesting date

Number of options (000s)

Farr value of options at date of grant (£000s)

Tranche 1
Senior Manager
25 August 2011

0088

0191

82 45%

5

149%

0 00%

25 August 2014
250

£11

Tranche 4
Senior Manager
25 August 2011

0088
0105
82 45%
5

1 49%

0 00%

25 August 2014
500

£28

Tranche 7
Senior Manager

1 Novermnber 2011
0183

0150

93 22%

5

124%

000%

1 November 2014
5,000

£675

Tranche 2
Senior Manager
25 August 2017

0088

0163

82 45%

5

149%

000%

25 August 2014
250

£12

Tranche 5
Senior Manager
25 August 2011

o088
0111
82 45%
5

1 49%

0 00%

25 August 2014
500

£27

Tranche 8
Senior Manager

1 December 2011
0285

0133

98 89%

5

1 19%

000%

1 December 2014
500

£118

Tranche 10
Lord Hutton

30 January 2012
0208

0 00%

30 January 2015
1,800

£215

Tranche 3
Senior Manager
25 August 2011

0088

0166

82 45%

5

149%

0 00%

25 August 2014
625

£30

Tranche &
Senior Manager

1 September 2011
0109

0152

80 85%

3

1 46%

0 00%

1 September 2012
1,000

£48

Tranche 9
Senior Manager
23 January 2012
0283

0300

77 90%

3

112%

0 00%

23 January 2013
2,250

£2a81

Tranche 11
Senior Manager
17 February 2012
0203

0121

75 29%

5

1 06%

0 00%

17 February 2015
500

£71

The far value of the cptions 1s measured by use of the Black Scholes model The inputs into the model are noted in the tables above
Expected volatiity was determined by calculating the tustoncal volatiity of the share pnce of similar potash companies over the

previcus 50 days

The options outstanding at 31 March 2012 had a weighted average remaining contractual ife of 4 2 years (2011 4 5 years)

The far value of the options determined at the grant date 1s expensed on a straight Iine basis over the vesting penod




The aggregate of the far values of the options granted dunng the year is £1,516,000 of which £223,000 was expensed to the income
statement (2011 £4,865,000) The far value of the options that were exercised duning the year s £nil (2011 £41,000) and the far
value of the options that were forfeited dunng the year i1s €nil {2011 £56,000) The far value of options that were granted in the pnor
year but expensed during the year 1s £1,125,000

Tha total expense recognised within the income statement in relation to equity settled share based payment transactions in the year
15 £1,348,000 (2011 £4,768,000)

At the year-end, the share based payment reserve was made up as follows

2012 2011

£000s £000s
Equity settled share based payments — directors 6,086 5,662
Equity settled share based payments - senior managers 1,062 178
Equity settled share based payments — consultants 233 183
Equity settled share based payments — professional advisers 128 128
Equity settled share based payments — asset acquisition 182 182
7,691 6,343

19 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

2012 2011
Group £000s £000s
At 1 Apnl 2011 9,701 3,233
Additions - 5,644
Credit to Income statement (3,006} {536)
Foreign exchange movement {67) 360
At 31 March 2012 6,628 9,701

20 LOAN FROM SUBSIDIARY

2012 2011
Company £000s £000s
1,104 1,104

All loans are interest free and repayable on demand The Directors consider that the carrying amount of borrowings approximates to
ther far vaiues

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2012 2011

Group £000s £000s
Trade payables 1,619 1,891
Other payables 193 79
Accruals 1,039 264
2,851 2,234

2012 2011

Company £000s £000s
Trade payables 192 162
Other payables 55 -
Accruals 75 109
322 271

The Directors consider that the trade and other payables carrying amount approximates to therr fair values
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22 CASH QUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2012 2011
Group £000s £000s
Loss before tax {63,110) (7.668)
Depreciation 53 2
Finance iIncome {164) (45)
Amortisation 8 -
Impairment 57,143 732
Share based payments — share options 1,348 4,768
Share based payments — equity settled transactions - 83
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital {4,724) (2,128)
(Increase)/decrease n recevables {1,398) (167)
Decrease/(increase} in payables 617 1,673
Net cash outflow from operating actvities {5,503) 622)
2012 2011
Company £000s £000s
Loss before tax (50,552) (5,975)
Depreciation 12 -
Finance income (146) (42)
Amortisation 1 -
Impairment 47,366 3
Share based payments 1,348 4,768
Share based payments - equity settled transactions - 83
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital {1,971) {1,163)
(Increase)/decrease In recevables {14) {53)
Decreasef{increase) in payables 51 16
Net cash outflow from operating actwvities {1,934) {1,200

23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 6 August 2011 the Company received notification that C&J Fraser Investments Pty Ltd, trustee of the Fraser Farmily Trust of which
CN Fraser 15 a beneficiary, purchased 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 25p each at a pnee of 7 07p per share, In the market

On 30 August 2011 the Company received notification that the Desmo Super Pty LUimited, trustes of Desmo Superannuation Fund of
which CN Fraser 1s a beneficiary, purchased 500,000 crdinary shares of O 25p each at an average pnce of 8 44p per share, n
the market

On 23 November 2011 the Company received notification that Scnmshaw Nominees Pty Limrted, trustes of the Scnmshaw Family
Trust of which RJ Scrimshaw Is a beneficiary, purchased 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 25p each at an average pnce of 23 65p per
share, In the market

On 30 January 2012 the Company 1ssued 1,800,000 share options at an exercise price of 30p per share to Lord Hutton

0On 31 January 2012 the Company 1ssued 19,000,000 new ordinary shares of 0 25p each at a price of 18p per share to RJ
Scrimshaw as part of a share placing, realising £3,400,000

During the year the Company was charged £37,000 (2011 £60,000) by Pacific Corporate Management Limited for the sarvices of
RC'D Poulden (see note 7)

During the year the Company was charged £25,000 {2011 £10,000) by Z/Yen Group Limited for the senaces of Prof MR Mainell
{see note 7)




During the year the Company loaned £17,511,000 {2011 £2,747,000) to its subsidianes for working capital purposes (see note

14) The Company impaired its loans to Derby Salts Pty imited, Bicarb Sequestration Pty Limited, CO, Energy Storage Pty Limited
and CO, Erergy Storage Limited (see note 4) The total mparrment charge 1s £4,925,000 At the year-end, the Company had a loan
recevable balance of £16,372,000 due from its subsidianes (2011 £3,785,000)

During the year Sirus Minerals (Austraha} Pty Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, was charged £21,000 (2011 £83,000) by Siginya
Capttal Pty Limited which 1s a related party to CN Fraser, for office related expenses At the year-end, Sinus Minerals {Australia) Pty
Limited had a payable balance of £nil (2011 £83,000) due to Siginya Capital Pty Linuted

Detalls of short-term employee benefits to the Directors, the key management personnel of the Company, are given in note 7

e EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE————————————
24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Classification of financial instruments

With the exception of Investments held by the Company, which are held at cost, all other Group and Company financial assets as
disclosed in notes 13 to 16 are classified as loans and recevables and their carrying values approximate to thew far values Al of the
Group and Company’s financial habilities are held at amortised cost

Capital management

The Group's and Company's cbjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's and Company's ability to continue

as a going concern, to provids returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The Group and Cormpany define capital as being share caprtal plus reserves The Board of Directors monitors the level of capital as
compared to the Group's and Company’'s commitments and adjusts the level of caprtal as #t 1s determined to be necessary, by 1ssuing
new shares The Group and Company are not subject to any externally imposed capial requirements

Credit rnisk

The Group's credit nsk 1s primanly attnibutable to its other recevables, cash and cash equivalents and loan to a third party The Group
has implemented policies that require appropnate credit checks The amount of exposure to any sndwvidual counterparty 1s reviewead
regularly by the Board

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the year-
end date was

2012 2011
£000s £000s
Group
Other recewvables 9563 260
Cash and cash equivalents 54,271 21,010
L.oan to third party 1,500 -

56,724 21,270
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The total of other receivables, cash and cash equivalenits and loan to third party constitutes all of the financial assets held by the
Group within the I1AS 39 category loan and receivables The farr value of the loan to third party 1s not rmatenally diferent from its
carrying value

2012 2011
£0008 £000s
Company
Other receivables 56 56
Cash and cash equivalents 53,828 20,871
Loans to subsidianes 15,753 3,785
69,637 24,712

The total of other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and Ioans to subsidianies constitutes all of the financia! assets held by the
Company within the IAS 39 category loans and recewvables The farr value of the loans to subsidianes are not matenally different from
s carrying value

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest beanng assets compnse cash and cash equivalents earning interest at a vanable rate and a loan to a third party
earning interest at a fixed rate of 6% The Group borrowing at the year-end was £nil (2011 £nil) and the Company borrowing at the
year-end was £1,104,000 (2011 £1,104,000)

The Group has not entered intc any denvative transactions dunng the penod under review

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents earned interest from vanous instant access deposits and fixed term deposits in Steriing and
Australan Dollars Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and Company are disclosed above under credit nsk The mpact of a
rmovement of 5% in the rate of nterest on the Group’s and Company’s cash and cash equivalents will have no matenal impact to the
Group and Company's results and financial positions as at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011

Liquidity risk

The Group actively maintains cash balances that are designed to ensure that there are sufficient available funds for operations
and planned expansions The Group monitors its levels of working capital to ensure that it can meet its payments as they fall due
The following table shows the contractual maturities of the Group and Company’s financial liabhities, all of which are measured at
amortised cost

Trade &
other
payebles Accruals Total
£000s £000s £000s
Group
At 31 March 2012
6 months or less 1,812 1,039 2,851
Total contractual cash flows 1,812 1,039 2,851
Total amount of financial habiliies measured at amortised cost 1,812 1,039 2,851
Trade &
other
payebies Accruals Total
£000s £000s £000s
Group
At 31 March 2011
6 months or less 1,870 264 2,234
Total contractual cash flows 1,970 264 2,234
Total amount of financial habiliies measured at amortised cost 1,970 264 2,234




Trade Loan from

payables Accruals subsichary Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Company
As at 31 March 2012
6 months or less 247 75 1,104 1,426
Total contractual cash flows 247 75 1,104 1,426
Carryng amount of financial habilites measured
at amortised cost 247 75 1,104 1,426
Trade Loan from
payables Accruals subsidiary Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s
Company
As at 31 March 2011
6 months or less 162 109 1,104 1,375
Total contractual cash flows 162 109 1,104 1,375
Carmng amount of financial habilities measured
at amortised cost 162 109 1,104 1,375

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The reporting currency of the Group and Company 1s Sterling Transactions denominated in a foreign curency are translated into
Sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and habdities
dencminated m foreign currency are translated at the rate ruling at that date All exchange differences are charged or credited to the
incorme staternent as appropnate

On consolidation, the assets and liabilties of foreign operations, which have a functional currency other than Sterling, are translated
Into Sterling at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The revenues and expenses of these subsidiares are
translated into Sterling at average rates for the year All exchange differences are recognised within the balance sheet under equity

The impact of a moverment of §% In foreign exchange rates when translating the accounts of the foreign subsidianes into Sterling
would be £1,692,000 (2011 £43,000) to the Group’s results and £2,827,000 (2011 £2,746,000) to the Group’s financial position as
at 31 March 2012

25 COMMITMENTS

In order to maintain current nghts of tenure to exploration tenements, the Group 1s required to perform minimum exploration work
to meet the minimum expenditure requirements specified by vanous governments The Group s also required to make payments
to landowners under option agreements to secure mmeral nghts These obligations are subject to penodic renegotiation These
obligations are not provided for in the consolidated accounts as at 31 March 2012 and are payable as follows

2012 2011

£000s £000s
Within cne year 961 542
After one year but not more than five years 3,697 2,032

4,558 2,574
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NOTICE OF AGM

SIRIUS MINERALS PLC
Incorporated and registered in England and Wales with registered number 04948435

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of Sinus Minerals Plc (the “Company”) will be held at the
Imperal Suite, Crown Spa Hotel, Esplanade, Scarborough YO11 2AG on Wednesday 26 Saptember 2012 at 1130am
for the following purposes

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass resolutions 1 to 8, which are proposed as ordinary resolutions and
resolution 9, which 1s proposed as a special resolution:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

To receive the accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the reports of the directors and auditors

To elect Lord Hutton, being a director appointed since the last annual general meeting, as a director of the Company

To elect Sir David Higgins, being a director appointed since the last annual general masting, as a director of the Company

To elect JH Murray, being a director appointed since the last annual general meeting, as a director of the Company

n| | DfNDf -

To re-elect CJ Catlow, who retires by rotation in accordance with the Company's articles of association and who, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election as a director of the Company

To re-appoint Nexia Smith & Willamson as auditors of the Company until the conclusion of the next annual general meetng 1in 2013

To authorise the directors to fix the auditers' remuneration

To generally and unconditionally authonse the directors in accordance with section 551 of the Compantes Act 2006 {(“the Act™) to exercise
all the powers of the Company to allot shares or grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company, up

to an aggregate nominal amount of £2,086,749 60 provided that the authorty conferred by this resolution shall apply in addition to ali
existing authonties and will expire on the date being 5 years frem the conclusion of this annual general meeting, save that the Company
may, before such expiry, make an offer, agreement or other arrangement which would or might raquire shares to be allotted or rights to
subscribe for or convert any security nto shares in the Company to be granted after such expiry and the directors may allot such shares
or grant such rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company in pursuance of such offer, agreement or cther
arrangement as If the authority conferred hereby had not expired

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

9

Subject to the passing of resolution 8 above, to generally authonse the directors in accordance with section 570 of the Act to allot equity
securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act) in the Company, for cash, as if sub-section {1) of section 561 of the Act or any pre-emption
provisions contained in the Company’s articles of association did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be

Iimited to any allotment up to an aggregate nomenal amount of £2,086,749 60 provided that the authonty conferred by thus resolution shall
apply in addivion to all existing authorives and will expire on the date being § years from the conclusion of this annual general mesting,
save that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer, agreement or other arrangement which would or might require equity
securties to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot such equity secunties in pursuance of such offer, agreement or other
arrangement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired

By crder of the Board Third Floor, Greener House

v 68 Haymarket, London
< SW1Y 4RF

Jas Sembi
Company Secretary
Date 9 August 2012
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ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE

{l Only those shareholders registered in the register of members of the Company as at 6 00 pm on 24 September 2012 or, if this meeting I1s
adjourned, 6 00 pm on the day two days pror to the adjourned meeting shall be entitted to attend and vote at the annual general meeting
in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time Changes to entries on the refevant register of members after
600 pm on 24 September 2012 or, if this meeting 1s adjourned, 6 00 p m on the day two days prior to the adjourned meeting, shall be
disregardsd In determining the nghts of any person to attend or vote at this annual general mesting

APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

() A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at this annual general meeting 1s entitted to appoint one or more proxies 1o exercise all or any of
his/her rights to attend, speak and vote at the annual general meeting You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set out In these
notes and the notes to the proxy form

M) A proxy does not need to be a sharsholder of thea Company but must attend the annual general meeting to represent you Details of how
to appeint the Chairman of the annual general meeting or another person as your proxy using the proxy form are set out In the notes to
the proxy form If you wish your proxy to speak on your behalf at the annual general meeting, you will need to appoint your own choice of
proxy (not the Chairman) and give your instructions directly to them

{IV) A sharsholder may appoint more than one proxy provided each proxy is appointed to exercise rights attached to a different share or
shares held by the shargholder You may not appoint more than one proxy to exercise nghts attached to any one share Detaills of how
o appoint more than one proxy are set out in the notes to the proxy form

V) Avote withheld 1s not a vote In law, which means that the vote will not be counted in the calculation of votes for or against the resolution
If no voting Indication 1s given your proxy will vote or abstain from voting at hus or her discretion Your proxy will vote {or abstain from
voting) as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which 1s put before the annuat general meeting

{VI} The notes to the proxy form explain how to diract your proxy, how to vote on each rasclution or how to withhold their vote

To appoint a proxy using the proxy form, the form must be:

- completed and signed,

— sant or delivered to Newville Reqistrars Limited Newville House, 18 Laurel Lane, Halesowen, West Midlands, B63 3DA, and

— raceved by Naville Registrars Limited ne later than 11 30 am on 24 September 2012 or if the meeting 18 adjourned, 11 30 am on the day
two days prior to the adjourned meeting

In the case of a shareholder which is a company, the proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed on its
behalf by an officer of the company cr an attorney for the company The original of any power of attorney or any other authority
under which the proxy form 1s signed (or a duly certified copy of such power or authority) must be included with the proxy form

INSTRUCTIONS FOR ELECTRON!IC PROXY APPOINTMENT THROUGH CREST

(Vll) CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxes by utiising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the
meeting to be held on 26 September 2012 and any adjournments thareof by utiising the procaduras described (in the CREST manual
CREST Personal Members or other CREST Sponsored Members, and those CREST Members who have appointed a voting service
provider(s), should refer to thewr CREST sponscr or vating service provider(s), who will be able to take appropnate action on ther behalf

(VII)in order for a proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message {a "CREST Proxy Instruction®)
must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland ("EUI)'s specifications and must contain the infermation
required for such instructions, as described n the CREST manual The message must be transmitted so as to be received by the issuer’s
agent (ID 7RA1) no later than 11 30 am on 24 Septembar 2012 or if the meeting 1s adjourned, 11 30 a m on the day two days prior to
the adjourned meeting For this purpose, the tme of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the tme starnp apphed to
the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the 1ssuer's agent Is able to retneve the massage by enquiry to CREST in the
manner prescnbed by CREST

(1X) CREST members and, where applicable, ther CREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that EUl does not make available
special procedures In CREST for any particular messages Normal system timings and imitatrons will therefore apply in relation to the
input of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibiity of the CREST member concemed to take (or, if the CREST member 1s 2 CREST
Parsonal Member or CREST Sponsored Membaer or has appointed a voting service provider(s) to procure that his CREST sponsor ar
voting service provider{s} take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a messagse Is transmitted by the CREST system by any
particular time In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, therr CREST sponsors or voting service providers ara raferred,
in particular, to those sections of the CREST manual concerning practical imitations of the CREST system and timings

X} The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction i the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a} of the
CREST Regulations




APPOINTMENT OF PROXY BY JOINT SHAREHOLDERS

XB  Inthe case of joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by
the most semior holder will be accepted Semonty 1s determined by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear 1n the
Company's register of members in respect of the joint holding {the first-named being the most senior)

CHANGING PROXY INSTRUCTIONS

(XIl) To change your proxy appointments simply submit a new proxy appointment using the methods set out above Note that the cut-off tme
for receipt of proxy appointments (see above) also applies in relation to amended instructions, any amended proxy appointment received
after the relevant cut-off time will be disregarded

Where you have appointed a proxy using the proxy form and would like to change the instructions using another proxy form, please
contact Neville Registrars Limited, Neville House, 18 Laurel Lane, Halesowen, West Midlands, B63 3DA, telephone 0121 585 1131 or
fax 0121 585 1132 If you submut more than one valid proxy appointment, the appointment receved last before the latast time for the
receipt of proxies will take precedence

TERMINATION OF PROXY APPOINTMENTS

(X119) In order to revoke a proxy Instruction you will need to send a signed hard copy notice ¢learly stating your intention to revoke your proxy
appointment 1o Neville Registrars Limited In the case of a shareholder which is a company, the revocation notice must be executed
under its common seal or signed on its behalf by an officer of the company or an attorney for the company The onginal of any power of
atiorney or any other authonty under which the revocation notice 1s signed (or a duly certified copy of such power or authonity) must be
included with the revocation notice The revocation notice must be received by the Company no later than 11 30 a m on 24 September
2012 or if the meeting 1s adjourned, 11 30 am on the day two days pnior to the adjourned mesting, and a copy must be sent or delivered
to Neville Reg:strars Limited, Newville House, 18 Laurel Lane, Halesowen, West Midlands, B63 3DA

Appointment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending the annual general meeting and voting in person If you have appointed a
proxy and attend the annual general meeting In person and vote In respect of a particutar resolution then your proxy's vote, If he or she
makes one, will not be counted

COMMUNICATION

IV} Except as provided above, shareholders who have general quenes about the annual general meeting should use the following means
of communication
» calling Neville Registrars on 0121 585 1121 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras), or
* by emalil to reece@nevilleregistrars co uk

You may not use any elsctrome address prowided in any documentation to communicate with the Company for any purposss other than
those expressly stated

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE PROPOSED RESCLUTIONS

XV} Resoluton 1 The directors of the Company are required to lay before the shareholders at the annual general meeting, the accounts of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the reports of the directors and auditors

{XVl) Resolution 2 Lord Hutton was appointed as a director of the Company on 18 January 2012

(XV1l) Resolution 3 Sir David Higgins was appointed as a dwrector of the Company on 15 March 2012

XVl Resolution 4 JH Murray was appointed as a director of the Company on 22 May 2012

{XIX} Resolution 5 The Company’s articles of association reguire certain directors to retire by rotation

(XX} Resolution 68 The Company 1s required to appomt auditors at each annual general mesting at which the accounts are laid, to hold office until
the next annual general mesting

(XXI) Resclution 7 The directars can fix the auditors' remuneration for the next year

(X1 Resolution 8 Under section 551 of the Act, the directors require shareholders’ authority to affot shares Shareholders last granted authonty
to the directors to allot shares at the annual general meeting In September 2010 The authonty sought by the directors at this annual general
meeting 1 approxmately 62 34% of the 1ssued share capital as at 9 August 2012 The grant of this authonty will provide the directors with
flexibiity to finance the Company's prejects and/or potential acquisitions, by 1ssuing shares The authonty sought at the 2012 annual general
meeting 18 in addibon to the existing and unexercised authonties granted at the 2010 annual general meeting

PO Resclution @ Under section 561 of the Act, if the directors wish to allot shares for cash, they must in the first instance, offer them to existing
ordinary shareholders in proportion to ther ordinary shareholdings Shareholders last granted authonty to the directors to disapply pre-emptive
nghts at the annual general meeting in September 2010 The authonty sought by the directors at this annual general meeting Is approximately
62 34% of the 1ssued share capital as at 9 August 2012 The grant of thes authorty will provide the directors wath flexibiity to finance the
Company's projects and/or potential acquisitions, Dy Issuing sharas without first offenng thern to existing shareholders The authority sought at
the 2012 annual general mesting Is in addition to the existing and unexercised authorties granted at the 2010 annual general measting
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ADR Amencan Depository Receipts

oTCQX The premuer tier of the Unitad States over-the-counter securities trading market
ALUNITE A hydrated aluminium potassium sulphate mineral

BED The smallest division of a geologic formation

BOREE SALT MEMBER A mmneral deposit in Queensiand, Australia

CAES See Compressed Air Energy Storage

CAGR Compound Annual Growth Rate

CALCIUM HYDROXIDE

Slaked kme - Ca(OH),

CALCIUM OXIDE

Quickimea or burnt ime - Ca0

CALCIUM SULPHATE

Common chemucal and industnal chemical - CaSO,

CARBON SEQUESTRATION The capture of carbon dioxide
CARNALLITE A hydrated potassium magnesium chlonde
COMPETENT PERSON A legal defimition for the purposes of the Australasian Jont Ore Reserves Committee (JORC)

and NI 43-101

COMPRESSED AIR ENERGY

A way o store energy generated at one time for use at another time

STORAGE/CAES

CFR Cost and Freight Trade term for cost of goods including the cost of therr delivery to the port
of delivery

DEFRA UK government Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

DSS Detaled Scoping Study for the York Potash Project released on 30 Apnl 2012

EPSOMITE Household name 1s Epsom salt A hydrous magnesium sulphate mineral - MgSO, 7H,0

EVAPORITE A watar-soluble mineral secdiment that results from the evaporation from an agqueous solution
and has been concentrated by evaparation

FAQ Food and Agriculture Organization

FOB Free On Board Trade term for the delivery of goods on board a vesse! at the port of loading

GYPSUM A hydrated form of calcium sulphate - CaS0, 2H,0

HALITE Commonly known as rock salt The mineral form of sodium chicnide (NaCl)

ICMM International Council on Mining & Metals

IFA International Fertiiser Association

{NDICATED RESOURCE

A mineral resource estimate that has been made, at a reasonable level of confidence, of the
contained mineral, grade, tonnage, shape, densities and physical charactenstics

INFERRED RESOURCE

That part of a mineral resource for which tonnage, grade and mineral content can be estimated
with a low level of confidence

INTERBED When layers of one type of rock ara interlayared with a differant type of rock

IPC Infrastructure Planning Commission

JORC Australasian Joint Ore Reserves Committee

KAINITE A mineral salt that consists of potassium chlonde and magnesium sulphate
KIESERITE A hydrated form of magnesium sulphate mineral - MgSO, H,O

LANGBEINITE A potassium magnesium sulphate mineral — K,S0, 2MgSO,

MALLOWA SALTS A geologecal formation contaiming mineral deposits located i the Kimberley region of

Western Australia

MAGNESIUM HYDROXIDE

Milk of magnesia — Mg(QOH),




MAGNESIUM OXIDE

Magnesia - MgO

MAGNESIUM SULPHATE

Mgso,

MEASURED RESOURCE indicated Resources that have undergone encugh further sampling for 1t to be regarded as an
acceptable estimate, at a huigh degree of confidence, of the grade, tonnage, shape, denstties,
physical charactenstics and mineral content of the mineral occurrence

MEMBER The formal hthestratigraptue unit next in rank below a formation A member possesses properties
distnguishing it from adjacent parts

MMO Marine Management Organisation

MT Milllon metric tonnes

MTPA Milion metnc tonnes per annum

MURIATE OF POTASH/MOP See Potassium Chlonde

NI 43-101 National Instrument 43-101 an internationaily accepted Canadian mineral resource
classification system

NPA National Park Authornity

NPK Fertihsers made up of a combination of nitrogen (N}, phosphorus (P) and potassium (K}

PH The concentration of hydregen 1ons in a solution A measure of acidity and alkalinity

POLYHALITE A hydrated sulphate of potassium, calcium and magnesium - K,S0, MgS0, 2CaS0Q, 2H,0

POTASH Any of several compounds containing potassium Used mainly in fertilisers

POTASSIUM CHLORIDE A metal halide salt compnsing potassium and chlonne — KCI

POTASSIUM OXIDE A compound of potassium and oxygen Represents the amount of potassium in a ferhiliser

if 1t was in the form of potassium oxide — K,O

POTASSIUM MAGNESIUM SULPHATE

A potassium compound mainly used inits mineral form of langebeinite as a fertiiser

POTASSIUM NITRATE/NOP

A chemical compound of potassium, nitrogen and oxygen Used in fertilisers

PRAIRIE EVAPORATES See Saskatchewan Praria Evaporite Formation
QUALIFIED PERSON A suitably qualfied person who vouches for a NI 43-101 report, but has not necessarily written it
RASTER DATA A techmque of displaying data, using pixels

SASKATCHEWAN PRAIRIE EVAPORITE
FORMATION

A geological formation in the Willston Basin in Saskatchewan, Canada

SEISMIC LINES

The pattern of ines set out/or a seismic survey

SOLUTION MINING

The mining of underground, water-soluble minerals, by dissolving the minerals with water and
axtracting them

SOP/ SULPHATE OF POTASH A crystalline salt compound of potassium, sulphur and oxygen, used in fertilisers — K,SO,
SYLVENITE A muneral formed of a mixture of sylvite and halite

SYLVITE Potassium chlonde in natural minerat form

T Metnc tonne

YPP York Potash Projact
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The chemical composition of polyhalite and the available
products supplying the four macro-nutrients of potassium,
magnesiurn, sulphur and calcium are outlined below

1 Polyhalte K,S0, MgSQ, 2Cas0, 2H,0
2 Sulphate of Potash  K,SO,

3 Magnesium sulphate MgSO, 7H,0

4 Calcium sulphate CaS0,

This portfolio of products will enable Sinus to contnbute
towards the global chalienges of increasing agrnicuttural
productivity to ensure food security

POTASH (POTASSIUM)

The most common form of potash 1s potassium chlonde, or
Muriate of Potash (*“MOP”), which occurs naturally as sylvite,
sylvinite and carnalite The 2011 MOP production of 56 million
tonnes accounted for 90% of global potash production, with
the balance of 6 4 million tonnes being produced as Sulphate
of Potash ("SOP") MQCP contains around 60-62% potassium
oxide (K,0) Although widely applied in all types of farrming,
MOP 1s primarily used for row crops

SOP has historically attracted a price prermium to the MOP
price due to its higher production costs, imited availabiity and
superior benefits for chlornide-sensitive crop types Some 60%
of SOP 15 produced from the reaction of sulphuric acid and
MOP In the Mannhein Furnace process and as such provides
a benchmark price floor for the SOP price

SOP contains 50-53% K,0, can be used in every application
that MOP can and s preferred in many circumstances as
the chloride 1on In MOP can be detrmental to some plants
Many types of fruit and vegetables, particularly tobacco, can
be affected by overexposure to chlonde Furthermore, in
areas with little rainfall or poor drainage, igh chlonde fevels
can be elevated in soils, resulting In symptoms of chloride
toxicity in crops Therefore, the soll’s chlorde content has

to be managed carefully by farmers and over-application of
MOP can have detnmental effacts on the yield and quality of
crops This may also be taken into account in case of intensive
potash-replenishment strategies in countries where potash
has histoncally been under-appled

SULPHUR

Sulphur 1s an essential crop macro-nutrient INvolved in several
metabolc processes such as photosynthesis, starch, sugar
and protein formation, as well as ail synthesis It rivals nitrogen
in proten synthesis and phosphorus in nutnent uptake by
crops and 1s therefore more often labelled ‘the fourth pnmary
nutrient’ Historically its importance was not fully recogmised,
however, high intensity farming, use of iImproved crop vansties
and increased use of sulphur-free fertiisers have created large
gaps between sulphur supply and demand Sulphur deficiency
is widespread across the world and 1s growing, adversely
affecting crop productivity Regions with significant sulphur
deficiency have been located in China, India, sub-Saharan
Afnca and Brazil Research by The Sulphur institute (*TS1")
forecasts global sulphur deficiency to grow from 13 2 million
tonnes in 2005 to 16 7 mithon tonnes by 2015

Many studies have demonstrated the positive impact of
sulphur on crops producing higher yields, better qualty and
improved nitrogen effictency Several different sulphur fertihser
products are available

* AMMONIUM SULPHATE mostly sold as a nitrogen source,
contains 24% sulphur

* AMMONIUM THIOSULPHATE: a hquid nitrogen fertiliser,
containing 26% sulphur

* ZINC SULPHATE containing 14% sulphur

* PHOSPHATE FERTILISERS. contaning between 12% and
15% sulphur

* POTASSIUM MAGNESIUM SULPHATE containing 22% to
23% sulphur

Polyhalte 15 a naw sulphur nch fertiiser that not only contains
19 2% sulphur’, but atso contains three other key macro-
nutnents

* 14% K,0 from sulphate of potash
* 6% MgO frorn magnesium suiphate

* 17% CaO from calcium sulphate

1 Polyhalite containa 483 50, which i3 18% S uzing the USDA convarsion rate of 0 4005




CALCIUM SULPHATE

Calcium sulphate contains two macro-nutrients that are wital
to plant health, calcium and sulphur Caleiurm 1s essential to
root and leaf development and helps strengthen overall ptant
structure, increasing resistance to wind, hail, nsects and other
sources of physical damage Calcium deficiency Is typically
associated with acidic soil types with high rainfall Regions
with deficiencies of calcium suitable for plant uptake are noted
in India, and the tropical areas ¢f Latin Amenca and South-
East Asia

While calcium 1s a very common mineral 1t 15 often present in
a form unsuitable for plant uptake However, calcium sulphate
15 able to be readily absorbed by plants Appropnate levels of
calcium sulphate would promote the following

* Proper growth and develcpment of the plant,
* Physical plant structure,
* Nitrogen uptake and metabolism, and

= Other cntical metabolic functions

MAGNESIUM SULPHATE

Magnesium 1s also one of the six macro-nutrients essential

for crop growth and food production, playing a wital role in the
photosynthesis process which 1s reguired for plant growth

It works synergistically with both mitfrogen and potassium to
enhance crop quality and yield Magnesium 1s also needed for
all processes that require energy, including protain and vitamin
synthasis, working together with phosphorus to transfer the
internal energy required for crop growth

Magnesium as a nutrient has long been ignored which has led
to widespread magnesium deficiency in crops Magnesum
deficient regions have been located in Brazil and Central
America, Sub-Saharan Afnica, South-East Asia, the east

coast of the United States and the wast coast of Australia
Magnesium deficiency occurs most often on acidic, low
magnesium-exchange soils where the topsoill has been
eroded There are three forms of magnesium that can be
applied to the soll

* THE CARBONATE FORM' Magnesite and dolomite
e THE OXIDE FORM Magnesium oxide

* THE SULPHATE FORM: Kiesente (MgSO, H,0) and epsomite
(MgS0, 7H,0), which is a hydrated magnesium sulphate
Epsomite 1s a natural component of polyhalite

The advantages that magnesium sulphate has over other
magnesium compounds include

* Additional provision of a small amount of another essential
macro-nutrnent - sutphur

* High sofubility Magnesium oxides and carbonates have a very
slow solubility, which means that they release the magnesium
at rates that are insufficient for the required crop uptake

MAGNESIUM OXIDE

The magnesium oxide or magnesia market can be spht into

two product categornes based on grade

1. REFRACTORY GRADES Fused Magnesia ("FM") and Sintered
or Dead Burned Magnesia (“DBM")

2 CHEMICAL GRADES Caustic Calcined Magnesia (“CCM”)

Refractory grades are the most important magnesia products
koth In term of value and volume and account for 60-70% of
all magnesia products They are used in furnace lining mainly
In the steel and cement industry The steel industry accounts
for 70% of global refractory consumption, whereas the cement
industry has a 20% share

Global consumption of refractory grade magnesia has never
been greater and 1s forecast to expand This growth has
been driven by the growing steel and cement industry of the
last three decades, particularly in China In the last 30 years
global stee! production doubled from 800 milkon tonnes In
1980 to 1 2 billion tonnes in 2010 The outlook for both global
steel and cement production 1s positive with compound
annual growth rates ("CAGRs") to 2015 of 4 3% and 5 3%
respectively Most growth 1s expected to come from China,
India and Brazi

MAGNESIUM HYDROXIDE

The magnesium hydroxide market can also be split nto two
product categories based on their form

1 SUSPENSIONS:
2 POWDERS:

Used mainly in water neutralisation

Used in chemical and pharmaceutical
apphcations as a flame retardant

Magnesium hydroxide suspensions can be made from CCM
or are produced synthetically The products are sold for acid
neutralisation where It competes with ime and caustic soda
Due to the large amount of water present in magnesium
hydroxide the freight costs are significant, leading to 1t being
sold mostly in local markets The exception i1s the United
States where it 1s transported throughout the country in a
concentrated form and then diluted

Magnesium hydroxide powders are used In relatively small
quantities in the chemical and pharmaceutical industries

Its use as a flame retardant 1s a smafl but fast growing
application, driven by increasingly stringent safety standards
and industry demand for an environmentally friendly, toxic-free
flame retardant, particularly for cabling in cars

The main geographic markets for magnesium hydroxide are
the United States, Europe and Asia
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GYPSUM

Gypsum 1s commonly mined from natural deposits or produced
synthetically as a by-product in the flue gas desulphunsation
process in coal-fired power stations Although gypsum I1s
abundantly available in certain parts of the world, a significant
guantity ts too low a grade to be economically processed

Gypsum 1s used in a variety of applications (e g as a fertihser
in the agricultural industry) but it 1Is most commonly used In
the production of wallboard {glso known as plasterboard)

for residential or cornmercial construction purposes Gypsum-
based wallboard I1s a successful and effective building matenal
due 1o its relatively low cost production costs and fire
reststance propertres

Until 2020, global gypsum demand 1s expected to grow at a
CAGR of approximately five per cent, driven pnimarily by growth
In the wallboard and construction industnes Several Industry
specific drivers will mpact demand in vanous markets

» QOver the next 15 years most growth will come from new build
n the emerging markets of Asia {sspecially Ghuna and India),
Brazil, and Afnca However, in the two biggest markets, the
United States and Europe, construction of all types 1$ forecast
to be slow

In the mature markets there will be a shift towards the renovation
wallboard segment In the developing markets, growth will move
from non-residential to residental in the next five to ten years
Globally there will be a long term shift towards renovation of
gypsum-based wallboard construction

= There will be increased demand for specialty boards, with
enhanced performance properties over and above the regular
wallboard For instance, improvemnents in fire and moisture-
resistance, and exterior weather resistance
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GENERAL INFORMATION

WWw siriusminerals com
info@sirusminerals com

INVESTOR INFORMATION

irdesk@siriusminerals com

UK

York Potash Limited
7-10 Manor Court
Manor Garth
Scarborough

YO11 3TU

Tel +44 1723 470 010

Project helpline 0845 543 8964
info@yorkpotash co uk
www yorkpotash co uk

AUSTRALIA

Sinus Minerals (Austraha) Pty Limited
Level 28, 259 George Street

Sydney

New South Wales 2000

Austraha

Tel +61 2 9917 8900

NORTH AMERICA

Dakota Salts, LLC

8390 E Crescent Parkway
Suite 600

Greenwood Village, CO 80111
United States of America

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER
4948435
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